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The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
Regular Board Meeting, Monday, September 25, 2017 @ 7:30 p.m. 

Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Estimated A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
Times 
 The Greater Victoria School District wishes to recognize and acknowledge the Esquimalt and 
 Songhees Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
7:30-7:35  A1. Approval of the Agenda  (p 01-05) 
 
 
7:35-7:40  A2. Approval of the Minutes 

 
a) Approval of the June 26, 2017 Regular Board Minutes (p 06-13) 

 
b) Approval of the August 21, 2017 Special Board Minutes (p 14-15) 
  

 
  A3. Business arising from the Minutes 
 
 
   A4. Student Achievement 
 
 
7:40-7:55  A5. District Presentations 
 

a)     2016-2017 KPMG Financial Statements Presentation      
 
 
7:55-8:20  A6. Community Presentations (5 minutes per presentation) 
 

a) Tasha Diamant, SD61 Dress Codes 
 
b) Chelsea Sherwood, SD61 Dress Codes 

 
c) Allison McNeill, SD61 Dress Codes 

 
d) Matt Paxman, SD61 Dress Codes 

 
e) Renay Maurice, SD61 Dress Codes 

  
B. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
    B1.    Letter from Mitzi Dean, MLA, Esquimalt-Metchosin   (p 16) 
 
    B2.    Letter from B.C. School Trustees’ Association            (p 17) 
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  C. TRUSTEE REPORTS 
 
8:25-8:30   C1.   Chair’s Report 
 
    C2.    Trustees’ Reports (2 minutes per verbal presentation) 

 
 

  D. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
D1. Education Policy and Directions Committee 

8:30-8:50 
a) Minutes from the September 11, 2017 meeting – Information only             (p 18-20) 

 
b) Recommended Motions: 

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the recommended motions from the September 11, 
2017 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting. 

 
 

i) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct that the School Code of Conduct will not include 
any other statements regarding expectations of dress, save for 
the following: 
 

1. Our school is committed to creating a learning community 
that values diversity and is free of all forms of 
discrimination.  In line with the BC Human Rights Code 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of an 
individual’s race, colour, ancestry, place of origin, 
religion, marital status, physical or mental disability, sex, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression and age, 
(insert school name) promotes a climate of understanding 
and mutual respect where all are equal in dignity and 
rights.  Actions through verbal and non-verbal 
communication (including clothing) must demonstrate 
support for the BC Human Rights Code. 

       (p 21) 

   

ii) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) establish a French Advisory Ad Hoc Committee to meet 
at least annually or as required. 

  (p 22-24) 

 

iii) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) request that the Superintendent provide a report and 
recommendation on elementary counselling supports for 
elementary children and their families for the November 2017 
Education Policy and Directions meeting. 
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 D2. Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
8:50-9:20 

a) Minutes from the September 18, 2017 meeting – Information only  (p 25-30) 
 

b) Recommended Motions: 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the recommended motions from the September 18, 
2017 Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting. 

 
    

i) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) increase trustee remuneration by $1,500 effective 
January 1, 2019 to offset the impact of the Federal income tax 
change. 

 (p 31-32) 

 

ii) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) accept expense reimbursement claims as of July 2018 
for trustee expenses associated with carrying out their duties. 

 

iii) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve that trustees shall submit professional 
development requests and that professional development 
expenses shall be treated independently of trustee business 
expenses. 

 

 
iv) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) direct the Superintendent to amend Regulation 8230 - 
Trustee Remuneration and Expenses for changes to the expense 
reimbursement and professional development procedures, and to 
reflect that trustee remuneration be adjusted on an ongoing basis 
for any salary percentage increases received by the GVTA, and 
that trustee remuneration be amended as of January 2018 to 
reflect the GVTA increases that have occurred since the 
beginning of the current Board’s term. 

 
v) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) strike an ad hoc committee of administration and trustees 
to discuss the processes, procedures and practices regarding the 
reimbursement of business expenses and professional 
development for trustees and report back to the October 2017 
Operations Policy and Planning Committee. 

 

 
vi) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) support in principle the upgrading of the upper Esquimalt 
High School field and direct the Superintendent to have 
discussions with community partners regarding the capital 
requirements of the project. 

 
 
 E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 
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9:20-9:25 E1. Superintendent’s Report 
 

a)  Monthly Report                       (p 33) 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) receive the Superintendent’s report as presented. 

 

 
 

b) Trustee Questions           (p 34) 
 
 
  E2.  Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
9:25-9:50 

a) Monthly Report           (p 35) 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) receive the Secretary-Treasurer’s report as presented. 

 

    
b)  2016/2017 Audited Financial Statements                          (p 36-81) 

  
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the internally restricted surplus appropriation of 
$19,769,564 as shown on Schedule 2 of the Financial 
Statements , being held for school level funds $5,379,427 (Note 
A), unspent project budgets $3,729,737 (Note B), purchase order 
commitments $1,385,806 (Note C), and the previously approved 
budgeted surplus of $5,500,000 (Note D). 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve $2,304,887 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 
operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) to be carried forward 
and applied towards the 2018/2019 projected deficit of 
$3,700,000 ($1,395,113 carry forward approved in April 2017 
(Note D)). 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve $500,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 
operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) to provide supports for 
children and families in elementary schools. 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve $400,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 
operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) for facility 
environmental upgrades. 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve $199,300 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 
operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) to hire two technology 
support teachers, for one year, who will provide teacher support 
in the use of technology to enhance student learning within the 
revised curriculum. 
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That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve $270,407 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 
operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) to provide learning 
resources to support the new curriculum. 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve $100,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted 
operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) to provide district-wide 
library support. 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the transfer of $211,782 to local capital for the 
student device replacement reserve. 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the audited financial statements of School 
District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) for the year ended June 30, 
2017; and that the Board Chair, the Superintendent and the 
Secretary-Treasurer be authorized to execute these statements, 
where applicable, on behalf of the Board. 

 
  c) Statement of Financial Information                (p 82-109) 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the schedules as required by the Financial 
Information Act for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 

 
 

F. QUESTION PERIOD (15 minutes total) 
 
9:50-10:00 F1.   Received via email on August 21, 2017  

 SD 61 currently collects funds from parents   and   businesses on a cost recovery basis 
for capital cost expenditures such as playground equipment costs and installation. 
What is the legal basis for doing so in a publicly funded system? 

 
  F2.   Received via email on August 21, 2017  

 As the Chair of a SD 61 PAC several parents have contacted me regarding apparent 
conflict of interest issues within the District. Schools are seen as "loading" their staff with 
teachers who have children attending the schools. There have been a number of 
incidents where teachers are teaching their own children and there have also been 
incidents where school disciplinary actions have not been consistently applied for 
children whose parents teach at their schools. What is District policy on this? 

 
 
G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS 
 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 H1. New Business 
 

H2. Notice of Motions 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
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The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

June 26, 2017 Regular Board Meeting - Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: 
Edith Loring-Kuhanga, Chair, Tom Ferris, Vice-Chair, Elaine Leonard, Diane McNally, Deborah Nohr, 
Peg Orcherton, Rob Paynter, Jordan Watters, Ann Whiteaker 
 
Administration: 
Piet Langstraat, Superintendent of Schools, Mark Walsh, Secretary-Treasurer, Shelley Green, Deputy 
Superintendent, Deb Whitten, Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent, Katie 
Hamilton, Manager, Community Engagement and Communications, David Loveridge, Director, Facilities 
Services, Simon Burgers, District Principal, Languages and Multiculturalism, Jeff Davis, Director, 
International Student Programs  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Chair Loring-Kuhanga recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose 
traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING 
 
 A1. Approval of the Agenda  

 
It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 

That the June 26, 2017 Agenda be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
 A2. Approval of the Minutes 
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 
That the May 23, 2017 Regular Board Minutes be approved.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 
 
 

A3. Business arising from the Minutes 
 

a) 3rd reading of amended Bylaw 9360, General Meeting of the Board 
 

It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 
That amended Bylaw 9360 – General Meeting of the Board be: 
 
Read a third time, passed and adopted the 26th day of June 2017 and that 
the amended Bylaw 9360 be enacted effective June 26, 2017. 

Motion Carried 

For: Trustees Loring-Kuhanga, Ferris, Leonard, McNally, Orcherton, Watters, 
and Whiteaker 

Against: Trustees Nohr and Paynter 
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 A4. Student Achievement 
 

a) Renee Pick, Principal, Cloverdale Traditional School, Sandra Jost Vice-Principal and 
students, Hannah and Ryan presented highlights of Cloverdale School’s 100 year 
anniversary celebrations. 

 
 A5. District Presentations 
 

a) Melanie Houston, Allied Specialists’ Association, was honored and recognized by 
Chair Loring-Kuhanga for her time as the President of the Allied Specialists’ 
Association. 

 
 A6. Community Presentations  
 

a) Darren Companion, Vice-President, GVTA – Restored Contract Language 
 

Mr. Companion expressed concerns about the pace of implementation of the 
restored contract language.  

 
b) Joyce Preston – Enrolment Priorities 

 
Ms. Preston expressed support for the revised proposed enrolment priorities as 
recommended to the Board. 

 
c) Katy Smith – Enrolment Priorities 

 
Ms. Smith expressed support for the revised proposed enrolment priorities as 
recommended to the Board. 

 
d) Suzette Goldsworthy – Macaulay Elementary – Computer Lab 

 
Ms. Goldsworthy expressed concerns about the dismantling of the Macaulay 
computer lab and presented a copy of a petition to the Board. 

 
 
B. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 B1. Letter from the Mayor of the City of Victoria 
 

A letter was received from the City of Victoria for information.  Superintendent Langstraat 
responded to Trustee questions. 

 
 
C. TRUSTEE REPORTS 
 
 C1. Chair’s Report 
 

Chair Loring-Kuhanga recognized the work and accomplishments of the Board and staff 
over the last year.  

 
 C2. Trustees’ Reports 
 

a) Trustee McNally presented the Aboriginal Nations Education Council Committee 
report. 

  
b) Trustee Ferris advised that the French Immersion Advisory Committee will be 

meeting in the fall. 
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c) The Needs Budget Ad Hoc Committee will meet once the Classroom Enhancement 

Funding is confirmed by the Ministry of Education. 
 

d) Trustee McNally reviewed the Saanich Arts, Culture and Heritage Advisory 
Committee report. 

 
e) Trustee Whiteaker presented the Saanich Parks, Trails & Recreation Advisory 

Committee report. 
 

f) The Victoria Family Court and Youth Justice Committee report was presented at the 
April 2017 Board meeting. 

 
g) Trustee Orcherton presented the Public Engagement Ad Hoc Committee report. 

 
h) Trustee McNally reviewed her various activities over the past month. 

 
 
D.  BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

D1. Education Policy and Directions Committee 
 

a) The June 5, 2017 meeting minutes were received for information. 
 

D2. Operations Policy and Planning Committee 
 

a) The June 12, 2017 meeting minutes were received for information. 
 

b) Recommended Motions: 
 

It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
approve the recommended motions (ii) and (iii) from the June 12, 2017 
Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
Trustees asked questions of clarification. 
 

It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 
i) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 

Victoria) amend the Equity Ad Hoc Committee’s Terms of 
Reference to a) extend the timeline of the Committee through the 
2017/2018 school year, and to b) add that the Committee will 
provide recommendations in advance of the 2018/2019 budget 
process. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 

ii) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct the Superintendent to review the Greater Victoria 
Foundation for Learning mandate and bring recommendations 
back to the Operations Policy and Planning Committee. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
iii) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 

Victoria) delete Policy 2127.060 Psychologist, Policy 2127.062 
Speech and Language Specialist, and Policy 2127.063 District 
Counsellors. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 
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Trustees asked questions of clarification of Superintendent Langstraat and 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 

iv) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) accept the Long Term District Facilities Plan report in 
draft format. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 
Superintendent Langstraat provided an overview of the issues associated with 
student registration priorities.  Jeff Davis, Director, International Student 
Programs presented items associated with registration priorities.  Trustees asked 
questions of clarification.  

 
The Superintendent confirmed that the Superintendent would have discretion in 
extraordinary circumstances to allow for an exception to the priorities.  

 
It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 

v) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) accept the recommendations of the Student 
Registration and Transfer Ad Hoc Committee as follows: 
 

1) That the Board of Education approve the following 
student enrolment priorities and corresponding 
considerations to take effect for student enrolment 
during the 2018-2019 school year:  

 
1. re-enrolling students 
2. a catchment area sibling 
3. a new catchment area child 
4. a non-catchment sibling  
5. a non-catchment area child 
6. a non-school district child 

 
2) That the Board of Education direct the Superintendent 

to revise the appropriate policies and regulations to 
reflect changes to the student enrolment priorities and 
process, including:   
 
English and French program families who could not 
access their catchment school will have the first right of 
refusal at their catchment school when, or if, a seat 
becomes available.  Should the family choose to stay in 
their present non-catchment school, or a seat does not 
become available at their catchment school, they will be 
treated as a catchment student at their non-catchment 
school and pathway. 

 
A student leaving a French Immersion program at a 
school that is not their English catchment school will 
have to apply for a transfer to attend the English 
program.  This practice will also apply to any student 
attending a program of choice at a non-catchment 
school (e.g. sports academy or leadership program). 

 
The enrolment priorities apply to all students in 
transition from elementary to middle school, and from 
middle school to high school.  In the event space is 
limited and a school cannot accept all non-catchment 
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student requests, priority will be given to those non-
catchment students currently in the determined pathway 
of schools over other non-catchment, non-pathway 
students. 

 
In recognition of a growing student population and to 
ensure an equitable placement of international students 
at schools across the District, the number of 
international student registrations will be capped at 
1,050 FTE for 2017-2018 and will be reviewed annually 
by the Superintendent and Director of International 
Student Programs, based on annual enrolment 
projections.   

 
3) That the Board of Education direct the Superintendent 

to review the current registration process to improve 
registration information and documentation 
requirements for registration, as well as identify possible 
options for online registration. 
 

 
Superintendent Langstraat provided general thoughts on the impact of 
grandfathering in response to Trustee questions.  An amendment was proposed. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) amend the Student Registration Priority 
recommendation to add the statement “and that all families 
registered for September 2017-2018 shall have their families 
grandfathered for five years” after section 1.6. 

Motion Defeated 

 

For: Trustees Leonard, Whiteaker, and Paynter 
Against: Trustees Loring-Kuhanga, McNally, Ferris, Watters, Nohr, and 

Orcherton 
 

Trustees continued to debate the motion.  
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) amend the Student Registration Priority 
recommendation to delete the words “from elementary to 
middle school, and” from the fourth paragraph in section 2. 

Motion Defeated 

 

For: Trustees Whiteaker, Leonard, and Paynter 
Against: Trustees Loring-Kuhanga, Ferris, McNally, Watters, Nohr, and 

Orcherton 
 

Trustees continued the debate on the main motion.  Trustees provided their 
feedback and expressed appreciation for the work of the Ad Hoc Committee as 
well as the feedback from parents. 

 
Chair Loring-Kuhanga called for the vote on the main motion. 

 
 That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 

Victoria) accept the recommendations of the Student 
Registration and Transfer Ad Hoc Committee as follows: 
 

1) That the Board of Education approve the following 
student enrolment priorities and corresponding 
considerations to take effect for student enrolment during 
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the 2018-2019 school year:  
 

1. re-enrolling students 
2. a catchment area sibling 
3. a new catchment area child 
4. a non-catchment sibling  
5. a non-catchment area child 
6. a non-school district child 

 
2) That the Board of Education direct the Superintendent to 

revise the appropriate policies and regulations to reflect 
changes to the student enrolment priorities and process, 
including:   
 
English and French program families who could not 
access their catchment school will have the first right of 
refusal at their catchment school when, or if, a seat 
becomes available.  Should the family choose to stay in 
their present non-catchment school, or a seat does not 
become available at their catchment school, they will be 
treated as a catchment student at their non-catchment 
school and pathway. 

 
A student leaving a French Immersion program at a 
school that is not their English catchment school will 
have to apply for a transfer to attend the English 
program.  This practice will also apply to any student 
attending a program of choice at a non-catchment 
school (e.g. sports academy or leadership program). 

 
The enrolment priorities apply to all students in 
transition from elementary to middle school, and from 
middle school to high school.  In the event space is 
limited and a school cannot accept all non-catchment 
student requests, priority will be given to those non-
catchment students currently in the determined pathway 
of schools over other non-catchment, non-pathway 
students. 

 
In recognition of a growing student population and to 
ensure an equitable placement of international students 
at schools across the District, the number of 
international student registrations will be capped at 
1,050 FTE for 2017-2018 and will be reviewed annually 
by the Superintendent and Director of International 
Student Programs, based on annual enrolment 
projections.   

 
3) That the Board of Education direct the Superintendent to 

review the current registration process to improve 
registration information and documentation requirements 
for registration, as well as identify possible options for 
online registration. 

Motion Carried 

For:  Trustees Loring-Kuhanga, Nohr, Watters, McNally, Ferris, and 
Orcherton,  

Against:  Trustees Paynter, Leonard, and Whiteaker 
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E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 
 
 E1. Superintendent’s Report 
 

a) Superintendent Langstraat presented his monthly report and responded to Trustee 
questions. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Nohr and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) receive the Superintendent’s report as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 

 
b) Specialty Academy Fees  

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) makes available to the public via the District website, the 
schedules of fees that have been approved by the School 
Planning Councils for the District’s Specialty Academy programs. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 

 
c) 2017/2018 Board of Education and Standing Committee Meeting Dates 

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve the 2017/2018 Board of Education Proposed 
Dates and the Standing Committee meeting dates. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 
d) Trustee Questions  

  
Trustees asked questions of the Superintendent regarding the Classroom 
Enhancement Funding. 

 
 
 E2. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
 

a) Secretary-Treasurer Walsh presented his monthly report and responded to Trustee 
questions. 
 

It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) receive the Secretary-Treasurer’s report as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 

 
b) 2018/2019 Capital Plan  

 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh provided an overview of the 2018-2019 Five Year Capital 
Plan and responded to Trustee questions. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Orcherton and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve for submission to the Ministry of Education, the 
2018/2019 Greater Victoria School District  No. 61 Five Year Capital 
Plan. 

 Motion Carried Unanimously  
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c) Classroom Enhancement Fund Update 

 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh provided an overview of the Classroom Enhancement 
funding received from the Ministry of Education based upon a review of the school 
district staffing, capital and overhead cost submission.  Trustees asked questions of 
clarification. 

 
 
F. QUESTION PERIOD  
 
 F1. The Public asked questions regarding alternative programming. 
 
 
G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS - None 
 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 H1. New Business – None  
 

H2. Notice of Motions - None 
 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was moved by Trustee Orcherton and seconded: 
That the meeting be adjourned. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:45 p.m. 

 
 

CERTIFIED CORRECT 
 
              

Chair       Secretary-Treasurer 
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The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

August 21, 2017 Special Board Meeting - Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: 
Trustees Tom Ferris, Chair, Edith Loring-Kuhanga (by conference call), Diane McNally, Deborah Nohr, Peg 
Orcherton (by conference call), Jordan Watters and Ann Whiteaker 
 
Regrets: 
Trustees Elaine Leonard and Rob Paynter 
 
Administration: 
Piet Langstraat, Superintendent of Schools, Mark Walsh, Secretary-Treasurer, Shelley Green, Deputy 
Superintendent, Deb Whitten, Associate Superintendent, David Loveridge, Director of Facilities Services and 
Vicki Hanley, Recording Secretary  
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:02 p.m. 
 
Chair Ferris recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional 
territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
 
 A1. Approval of the Agenda 
 

It was moved by Trustee Nohr and seconded: 
That the August 21, 2017 Agenda be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
 
B. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT - None 
 
 
C. SECRETARY-TREASURER 
 
 C1.   Quadra Elementary Easement 
 

Secretary-Treasurer Walsh advised Trustees that as part of the renovations and work being 
completed for the Classroom Enhancement Fund over the summer, Quadra Elementary 
School was approved to have a new portable installed on site to accommodate adjustments 
to the class sizes at the school.  As part of this process staff has requested a building permit 
from the City of Victoria and in order to obtain the permit the City has indicated that they will 
require an easement over part of the property. Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees 
with questions of clarification being asked of Secretary-Treasurer Walsh and the Director of 
Facilities Services, David Loveridge. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve granting 
an easement over Lot 1 on Plan 1177, Block A, Victoria PID 007-683-332, being Quadra 
Elementary School, to the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
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and the City of Victoria, for the purposes of access to consolidated Lots 2 and 3 on Plan 
1190B, Block 2, Section 4, Victoria, PID 008-032-939. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) agree to give all 
three readings of Disposal (Easement) of Real Property Bylaw 17-02 at the August 21, 
2017 meeting. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
Disposal (Easement) of Real Property Bylaw 17- 02 , being a bylaw to grant an 
easement over Lot 1 on Plan 1177, Block A, Victoria PID 007-683-332, being Quadra 
Elementary School, to the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
and the City of Victoria, for the purposes of access to consolidated Lots 2 and 3 on Plan 
1190B, Block 2, Section 4, Victoria, PID 008-032-939 be: 
 
Read a first time the 21st day August, 2017; 
Read a second time the 21st day of August, 2017; 
Read a third time, passed and adopted the 21st day of August, 2017. 
 
And that the Secretary-Treasurer and the Board Chair be authorized to execute and seal 
this bylaw on behalf of the Board. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 
That the meeting be adjourned. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 

CERTIFIED CORRECT 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Chair Secretary-Treasurer 

15



16



17




Education Policy and Directions Committee 
September 11, 2017 – Tolmie Board Room 

 
Minutes 

 
Present: TRUSTEES 

Ann Whiteaker, Chair 
 Diane McNally 
 Deborah Nohr 
 Peg Orcherton 
 Rob Paynter 
  Jordan Watters 
Regrets: Tom Ferris 
   
 ADMINISTRATION 
 Shelley Green, Deputy Superintendent 
 Deb Whitten, Associate Superintendent 
 Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent 
 Piet Langstraat, Superintendent of Schools 
 Simon Burgers, District Principal, Languages and Multiculturalism 
 Ilda Turcotte, GVTA Representative 
 Jeanette Alexander, ASA Representative 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Chair Whiteaker welcomed everyone back from summer break.  She also wished everyone all the best 
for the upcoming school year. 
 
Chair Whiteaker recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose 
traditional territories we live, learn and do our work. 
 
 
1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

It was moved by Trustee Orcherton: 
That the September 11th, 2017 Education Policy and Directions agenda be approved as 
presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 

It was moved by Trustee McNally: 
That the June 5th, 2017 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting Regular Minutes 
be approved with the following amendment:  in the last paragraph for French Advisory - 
Terms of Reference on page 6, change the word deferred to postpone. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES - None 
 
 
4. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE - None  
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_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Introduction of Student Representative 

 
Superintendent Langstraat introduced Meghan Scott, Esquimalt Secondary School Student 
Representative for the Education Policy and Directions Committee for the month of 
September. 

 
B. Dress Code 
 

Associate Superintendent, Deb Whitten, provided background and an overview of the work 
that has been completed to date with regard to the District’s Dress Code expectations and 
guiding principles. 

 
Trustees asked questions of clarification and provided feedback.  

 
Trustees agreed that the following motion needs to move forward to the Board of Education 
for consideration: 

 
 It was moved by Trustee Watters: 

1. That the School Code of Conduct will not include any other statements regarding 
expectations of dress, say for the following: 

2. Our school is committed to creating a learning community that values diversity and is 
free of all forms of discrimination.  In line with the BC Human Rights Code which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual’s race, colour, ancestry, place of 
origin, religion, marital status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or expression and age, (insert school name) promotes a climate of 
understanding and mutual respect where all are equal in dignity and rights.  Actions 
through verbal and non-verbal communication (including clothing) must demonstrate 
support for the BC Human Rights Code. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 

C. French Advisory - Terms of Reference 
 
Superintendent Langstraat provided a brief history in regard to the French Advisory Committee 
and the French Advisory Ad Hoc sub-committee.  The Superintendent then asked Simon 
Burgers, District Principal, Languages and Multiculturalism to provide greater details. 
 
Trustees asked questions of clarification and provided feedback. 
 

 It was moved by Trustee Orcherton: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) establish a 
French Advisory Ad Hoc Committee to meet at least annually or as required. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 
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_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Elementary Counselling Services 

 
Trustee Nohr explained her rationale and provided background information for presenting this 
motion. 
 
Trustees discussed the issue and asked questions of the Superintendent. 
 
 It was moved by Trustee Orcherton: 

That Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) request that the 
Superintendent provide a report and recommendations on elementary counselling 
supports for elementary children and their families for the November 2017 Education 
Policy and Directions meeting.  

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
D. VISTA (Vancouver Island Trustees’ Association) 

 
Trustee Watters stated that as a VISTA representative on the BCSTA Professional Learning 
Committee, she can now confirm that Esquimalt Secondary School will be the host site for next 
year’s VISTA Branch meeting on March 2 and 3, 2018. 
 
Trustee Watters provided details as to the events that will occur over the 2 days.  Trustee 
Watters also stated that the Minister of Education, parents, students and Esquimalt and 
Songhees Band members will also be in attendance at this 2-day event. 
 
Trustee Watters also asked that if anyone has additional ideas for the meeting, to please 
contact her. 

 
E. BCSTA (Provincial Council on Early Childhood Education) 

 
Chair Whiteaker explained the purpose of providing the handout from the BCSTA in regard to 
Early Childhood Education motion.  VISTA would like to once again put this forward as an 
emergent motion for upcoming Provincial Council meeting.  Chair Whiteaker discussed the 
pros/cons of putting forth the motion as emergent at the Provincial Council meeting or waiting 
until the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Trustees discussed the issue.  It was agreed that Trustee Watters would write a letter to VISTA 
advising them that the Board of Education would prefer to bring forth the motion as 
representatives at the AGM so that there is sufficient time to properly address the issue. 

 
 
6. NOTICE OF MOTIONS - None 
 
 
7. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS - None 
 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was moved by Trustee Orcherton: 
That the meeting be adjourned. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
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
 

 

  

        556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, British Columbia  V8Z 1E8   Fax:  250-475-4115 

 

 
MEMO 
 
 
From: Deb Whitten, Associate Superintendent 
 
To: Education Policy and Directions Committee  
 
Date: September 11, 2017 
 
RE: Guiding Principles regarding Dress 
 

 
Background: 
 
The One Learning Community Committee created a sub-committee tasked with 
preparing a recommendation regarding the district’s expectation and guiding principles 
for dress. The sub-committee believes the following recommendation aligns with the 
District values identified in the Strategic Plan.  
 
Recommendation: 

 
School Codes of Conduct will include the following statement:  
  
1. Our school is committed to creating a learning community that values diversity 
and is free of all forms of discrimination. In line with the BC Human Rights Code which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual’s: race, colour, ancestry, place of 
origin, religion, marital status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or expression and age, <insert school name> promotes a climate of 
understanding and mutual respect where all are equal in dignity and rights.  Actions 
through verbal or nonverbal communication (including clothing) must demonstrate 
support for the BC Human Rights Code.  
  
And 
 
2. The School Code of Conduct will not include any other statements regarding 
expectations of dress. 
 
 
 
  

 

Shelley Green, Deputy Superintendent          250-475-4117 

Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent   250-475-4220 

Deb Whitten, Associate Superintendent          250-475-4220 
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          EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 

         556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4120 

Fax (250) 475-4115 

 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 
TO: Education Policy and Directions Committee 
 
FROM: Simon Burgers, District Principal, Languages and Multiculturalism 
  
RE: Revised French Advisory Committee Terms of Reference 
 
DATE: Monday, September 11th, 2017 
 
 
The French Advisory Committee is currently established on an annual basis to provide advice 
and feedback to administration and trustees on a wide range of matters related to French 
Programs.  The current Terms of Reference are attached.   
 
The Ministry of Education administers federal funding to school districts in BC intended to 
support incremental costs resulting from offering French as a second official language under the 
current BC action plan of the Canada-British Columbia Agreement on Minority Language 
Education and Second Official Language instruction.  The Ministry encourages school districts  
“to form a French Advisory Committee with representatives from various stakeholder groups, i.e. 
trustees, administrators, parents and teachers.  Where established, best practice would suggest 
that allocation of funds be discussed with the committee.” 
 
In order to provide stakeholder input to address specific future French Language program 
needs, it is recommended that the Board of Education: 

1. Adopt a revised Terms of Reference for the French Advisory Committee that provides a 
clear focus and parameters for an advisory process that is directly connected to the 
funding categories identified in the Ministry’s BC action plan. 

The future advisory role of the French Advisory Committee will have an annual focus directly 
connected to aspects of the French Funding Guide as determined by the Ministry of Education.  
A proposed Terms of Reference for the French Advisory Committee is attached for reference.  
The mandate reflects the generated funding categories directly connected to annual district 
decision making in supporting French Programs.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
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The District French Advisory Committee 

 

Mandate and Terms of Reference 

The District French Advisory Committee provides advice and feedback to Administration and 

Trustees on a wide range of matters related to French Programs. 

The Committee meets a minimum of twice yearly, once in the fall and once in the spring, and 

more often if deemed necessary by membership.  Membership shall be reviewed annually and 

adjusted by agreement of committee members and the Board. 

District administration shall chair the Committee. 

The Chair shall organize meetings and collect agenda items.  The Chair shall regularly report to 

DLT and to Ed Policy on the work of the committee. 

Committee members shall be responsible for attending meetings, for liaising with their 

respective partner groups regarding issues under discussion and for reporting on committee 

deliberations. 

Membership of the District French Advisory Committee 

 one Trustee representative 

 one representative from District Administration 

 two representatives from Canadian Parents for French 

 two representatives from the GVTA 

 two representatives from VPVPA 

 two representatives from VCPAC 

When possible, it is recommended that membership be comprised of  

 one French Immersion teacher from the GVTA 

 one dual track principal from VPVPA 

 one French Immersion parent from VCPAC 
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French Advisory Committee Terms of Reference 

 

Purpose: 

 

The District French Advisory Committee provides input to District Administration and the Board of Education 

on matters related to French Programing. 

Mandate: 

 

Each stakeholder group from the District French Advisory Committee will have the opportunity to provide 

advice on the following areas related to French Programming: 

 

- French Immersion Learning Resources 

- Core French Learning Resources 

- Teacher Professional Development 

- Cultural Activities 

 

Membership: 

 

 District Principal of Modern Languages 

 one trustee representative 

 two representatives from Canadian Parents for French 

 two representatives from the GVTA (preference given to one immersion teacher and one core French 

teacher) 

 three representatives from VPVPA (preference given to one from each schooling level; and with dual 

track experience) 

 two representatives from VCPAC 

Procedural Notes: 

The District Principal of Modern Languages shall chair the Committee. 

The Committee meets a minimum of twice yearly, once in the fall and once in the spring, and more often if 

deemed necessary by the chair.   

Membership shall be reviewed annually. 

The Chair shall organize meetings and collect agenda items.  
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 Operations Policy and Planning Committee Meeting 

September 18, 2017 – GVSD Board Office, Boardroom 

 
 

REGULAR MINUTES 
 

Committee Members Present: Jordan Watters, Chair, Diane McNally, Rob Paynter, Elaine Leonard, 
Edith Loring-Kuhanga (ex-officio member) (present by teleconference)  
 
Other Trustees Present: Ann Whiteaker, Deborah Nohr  
 
Administration: 
Piet Langstraat, Superintendent of Schools, Mark Walsh, Secretary-Treasurer, Shelley Green, Deputy 
Superintendent, Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent, Deb Whitten, Associate Superintendent, 
David Loveridge, Director, Facilities Services, Colin Roberts, Director, Human Resource Services 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m.   

 
Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose 
traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
1. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 
 It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 

That the September 18, 2017 regular agenda be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  
 

 It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 
That the June 12, 2017 Operations Policy and Planning Meeting regular minutes be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES  
 

Trustees asked questions of clarification regarding the timing of a number of reports returning to 
the Committee. 

  
4. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE  
 

A. District Archives Update 
 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh acknowledged Judi Stevenson and Wayne Bembridge who have 
been volunteering their time to help manage the school district Historical Archives and Art 
Collection and noted that Ms. Stevenson has been a driving force in protecting, maintaining 
and promoting the District’s rich history for many years.  Secretary-Treasurer Walsh stated 
that the focus to date has been on inventory, security and preservation and that the next goal 
is to ensure that the Art Collection and Historical Archives are made available as a learning 
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resource for our students and also made available to our community in an appropriate and 
secure fashion. 

 
5. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
A. Introduction of Student Representative 

 
Superintendent Langstraat welcomed and introduced Saskia Van Beers and Meghan Scott 
the student representatives from Esquimalt High School. 

  
6. PERSONNEL ITEMS  

 
A. Teacher Staffing Update 

  
Colin Roberts, Director, Human Resource Services, provided an overview of the teacher 
recruitment efforts related to the implementation of the Letter of Understanding No. 17 which 
details the terms and conditions associated with the restoration of previous contract language, 
and noted that for the period January 1, 2017 through September 12, 2017, a total of 340 
teachers have been offered employment with the Greater Victoria School District.  Trustees 
asked questions of clarification and expressed their appreciation to the Human Resources 
Department for all of their work. 

 
7. FINANCE AND LEGAL AFFAIRS  
 

A. Parent Education Fund Report 
 
Deputy Superintendent Green advised that there were 20 approved requests and that the 
total spending from the Parent Education Fund in 2016-2017 was $5,000.  The balance 
remaining of $2,000 will be added to the 2017-2018 budget of $7,000 to support parent 
education opportunities.  Trustees asked questions of clarification. 
 

B. Trustee Expenses and Remuneration 
 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh stated that for 2019 and subsequent years, the one-third portion 
of trustee remuneration which is currently not taxable because it is considered to be an 
expense allowance will be taxable.  As a result, trustees will begin to submit expense 
reimbursement claims for expenses associated with carrying out their duties as of July 2018.   
 
Trustees discussed the recommendation that professional development requests associated 
with a Trustee’s personal professional goals be approved by the Chair or Vice-Chair, and the 
recommendation that trustee remuneration be adjusted on an ongoing basis to match all 
increases received by the BCTF/GVTA.  Trustees expressed general support for the 
proposals but expressed a desire for more discussion on the mechanisms for expense and 
professional development claims. 
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     It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) increase trustee 
remuneration by $1,500 effective January 1, 2019 to offset the impact of the Federal 
income tax change. 

  Motion Carried  

For: Trustees Watters, Leonard and Loring-Kuhanga 
Against: Trustees McNally and Paynter 
 
It was moved by Trustee Paynter: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) strike an ad hoc 
committee of administration and trustees to discuss the processes, procedures and 
practices regarding the reimbursement of business expenses and professional 
development for trustees and report back to the October 2017 Operations Policy and 
Planning Committee. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 
That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
strike an ad hoc committee of administration and trustees to discuss the processes, 
procedures and practices regarding the reimbursement of business expenses and 
professional development for trustees and report back to the October 2017 Operations 
Policy and Planning Committee.” be postponed to follow agenda item 7.B.4. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) accept expense 
reimbursement claims as of July 2018 for trustee expenses associated with carrying out 
their duties. 

Motion Carried  

For: Trustees Leonard, McNally, Paynter and Watters 
Against: Trustee Loring-Kuhanga 

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve that 
trustees shall submit professional development requests and that professional 
development expenses shall be treated independently of trustee business expenses. 

 
Discussion ensued with a suggested amendment.  
 

It was moved by Trustee McNally: 
That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
approve that trustees shall submit professional development requests and that 
professional development expenses shall be treated independently of trustee business 
expenses” be amended to replace the word “requests” with “intentions”. 

Motion Defeated 

For: Trustee McNally 
Against: Trustees Leonard, Watters and Paynter 
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Trustees voted on the main motion. 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve that 
trustees shall submit professional development requests and that professional 
development expenses shall be treated independently of trustee business expenses. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Superintendent to amend Regulation 8230 - Trustee Remuneration and Expenses for 
changes to the expense reimbursement and professional development procedures, and to 
reflect that trustee remuneration be adjusted on an ongoing basis for any salary 
percentage increases received by the BCTF/GVTA, and that trustee remuneration be 
amended as of January 2018 to reflect the BCTF/GVTA increases that have occurred 
since the beginning of the current Board’s term. 

 
Discussion ensued among the Trustees with an amendment being proposed. 
 

It was moved by Trustee McNally: 
That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
direct the Superintendent to amend Regulation 8230 - Trustee Remuneration and 
Expenses for changes to the expense reimbursement and professional development 
procedures, and to reflect that trustee remuneration be adjusted on an ongoing basis for 
any salary percentage increases received by the BCTF/GVTA, and that trustee 
remuneration be amended as of January 2018 to reflect the BCTF/GVTA increases that 
have occurred since the beginning of the current Board’s term” be amended to remove 
the reference to the BCTF. 

Motion Carried 

For: Trustees McNally, Paynter and Watters 
Against: Trustees Leonard and Loring-Kuhanga 

 
Trustees voted on the main motion as amended. 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Superintendent to amend Regulation 8230 - Trustee Remuneration and Expenses for 
changes to the expense reimbursement and professional development procedures, and to 
reflect that trustee remuneration be adjusted on an ongoing basis for any salary 
percentage increases received by the GVTA, and that trustee remuneration be amended 
as of January 2018 to reflect the GVTA increases that have occurred since the beginning 
of the current Board’s term. 

Motion Carried 

For: Trustees Watters, Leonard and McNally 
Against: Paynter and Loring-Kuhanga 
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Trustees voted on the postponed motion. 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) strike an ad hoc 
committee of administration and trustees to discuss the processes, procedures and 
practices regarding the reimbursement of business expenses and professional 
development for trustees and report back to the October 2017 Operations Policy and 
Planning Committee. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
8. FACILITIES PLANNING  
 

A. Long Term Facilities Plan  
 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh explained that the focus of the Long Term Facilities Plan is to 
provide a framework for future planning.  The recommendations in relation to the Long Term 
Facilities Plan were presented in June 2017 and will be brought to the Board for consideration 
as the various initiatives are brought into action.  The Long Term Facilities Plan is now 
available for review and feedback and will be brought to the Board in October 2017. 

 
Trustees expressed appreciation, asked questions of clarification and provided feedback. 
 

B. Esquimalt High School All-Weather Field 
 
Secretary-Treasurer Walsh explained that the Esquimalt High Alumni Association and school 
staff are interested in raising money for the installation of an all-weather field at Esquimalt 
High School.  Esquimalt High School is not slated for any significant capital improvements 
and consequently external funding sources will be required to raise the estimated cost of $1.8 
million dollars.  The Board is being asked to provide support in principle for upgrading the 
upper Esquimalt High School field.  Trustees asked questions of clarification. 
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker: 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) support in 
principle the upgrading of the upper Esquimalt High School field and direct the 
Superintendent to have discussions with community partners regarding the capital 
requirements of the project. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
9. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS – None 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS  

 
A. Trustee Questions 

 
a. Trustees asked questions about the International Student Program recruitment planning.  

The Superintendent indicated that he would bring a response to either the September 
Board meeting or the October Operations Policy and Planning meeting. 

 
b. Trustees asked questions about a policy regarding the acquisition and display of art.  

Administration responded that a policy and regulation would be brought forward at a later 
date. 
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c. Trustees asked questions regarding student engagement.  

 
11. NOTICE OF MOTION – None 
 
12. GENERAL ANNOUCEMENTS – None 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was moved Trustee Leonard: 
That the meeting adjourn. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.  
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O F F I C E  O F  T H E  

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
556 BOLESKINE ROAD, VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBIA V8Z 1E8 

PHONE (250) 475-4108   FAX (250) 475-4112 
 
 

 

 
TO:  The Board of Education 
 
FROM:  Mark Walsh, Secretary-Treasurer 
 
DATE:  September 25, 2017 
 
RE: Trustee Expenses, Professional Development and Remuneration 

 
 
Background 
 
For 2019 and subsequent years, the Federal Government has announced changes to the 
income tax treatment for the expense allowance portion of trustee remuneration. The current 
income tax treatment is that one-third of trustee remuneration is not taxable because it is 
considered to be an expense allowance. In the future, this one-third portion will be taxable.   
 
The tax change has led administration to review trustee expenses, professional development 
and remuneration more generally and has resulted in the following recommendations. 
 
Trustee Expenses 
 
Given the income tax changes, senior administration is recommending that trustees begin to 
submit expense reimbursement claims for expenses associated with carrying out their duties as 
of July 2018.  The expense claims will be approved by either the Board Chair or Vice-Chair.  
 
Other jurisdictions have increased remuneration to offset the increased tax amount.  The annual 
increased cost will be approximately $1,500 per trustee. 
 
Trustee expenses will be budgeted separately from professional development costs.  This will 
enable trustees to participate in business related activities that are important to the District, such 
as visiting leading practice sites, without affecting professional development opportunities. The 
overall budget of approximately $20,000 would not need to be increased. 
 
Professional Development 
 
If the Board agrees that business expenses should be treated differently for budget purposes 
(all expenses will continue to be reported in the Statement of Financial Information), it is also 
recommended that professional develop requests associated with a Trustee’s personal 
professional goals be approved by the Chair or Vice-Chair to provide an accountability 
mechanism.  
 
Remuneration 
 
It is recommended that trustee remuneration be adjusted on an ongoing basis to match all 
increases received by the BCTF/GVTA.  It is also recommended that effective January 2018, an 
increase be applied to the current rate of remuneration reflecting the BCTF/GVTA increases 
since the beginning of the current term of the Board. 
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Process 
 
For process clarity we recommend trustees and administration meet to determine an 
appropriate process going forward regarding the reimbursement of business expenses and 
access to professional development. 
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t   OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 
 556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Piet Langstraat, Superintendent 
Phone (250) 475-4162 

Fax (250) 475-4112 

 
 
 
TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Piet Langstraat, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: Superintendent’s Report 
     
DATE: September 25, 2017 
 
 
There are a number of items that the Superintendent wishes to bring to the attention of the 
Board of Education. 
 
Events and Meetings 
The Superintendent has attended a number of events and met with a number of individuals 
since the last Board meeting.  These have included: 
 

 District Committees 
o Public Engagement  

 
 

 Additional Meetings and Events 
o Artemis Place Society 
o BCSSA Summer Leadership Conference 
o Canadian School Board Association Conference 
o Craigflower Elementary 
o District Leadership Program 
o Glanford Middle School 
o Generative Dialogue Session 
o Ministry of Education Meetings 
o Reynolds Secondary  
o Service Delivery Project 
o Songhees and Esquimalt Nations 
o University of Victoria 

 

 
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t   OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Pieter Langstraat, Superintendent 
Phone (250) 475-4162 

Fax (250) 475-4112 
 
 
TO:  The Board of Education  
 
FROM:  Piet Langstraat, Superintendent of Schools  
 
RE:  Trustee Questions  
 
DATE:  September 25, 2017  
 

 

 
 
During this portion of the Board Meeting, Trustees will have the opportunity to raise 
questions.  Where possible, an immediate response will be provided.  In the event that 
research is necessary before a response is provided, the matter will be postponed until 
a researched response can be provided. 

 
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O F F I C E  O F  T H E  

SECRETARY-TREASURER 
556 BOLESKINE ROAD, VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBIA V8Z 1E8 

PHONE (250) 475-4108   FAX (250) 475-4112 
 
 

 
 
 
TO:  The Board of Education 
 
FROM:  Mark Walsh, Secretary-Treasurer 
 
DATE:  September 25, 2017 
 
RE:  Monthly Report 
 

 
 
The purpose of this memo is to update the Board on some of the activities of the Secretary 
Treasurer’s office over the summer months. 
 
The summer months have been extremely busy for the office. 
 
In addition to assisting in the organization of the capital work and answering questions and concerns 
from the community we have also been diligently planning our seismic program. We have met with 
the Ministry of Education and had various discussions with stakeholders with respect to projects 
including Vic High, Burnside Education Centre and Shoreline Middle School and issues of housing. 
 
I attended a meeting of the Quadra-Hillside neighborhood as a representative of the District to 
discuss District plans for our properties in that area. 
 
We met with childcare providers, both those applying for funding from the Ministry of Children and 
Family Development as well as others. We have managed to assist one provider in expansion of 
before and out of school care services. We have also managed to save a childcare (previously not 
associated with the District) from temporary closure by housing them at Richmond on a temporary 
basis. I attended a Childcare Solutions Meeting held at the City of Victoria regarding the issue of 
childcare. 
 
I attended the B.C. Schools Superintendents Association summer conference, which was also an 
opportunity to meet with the District Senior Leadership Team for planning purposes. 
 
Lastly, I attended a session at the Songhees Wellness Centre to learn about Lekwungen traditional 
family structures. 
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Background to 2016-2017 Financial Statements Page 1 of 8 

2016-2017 Audited Financial Statements  

Board Meeting Presentation 

September 25, 2017 
 

The financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 
2017, the statement of operations, changes in net financial assets (debt) and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes, have been audited by KPMG LLP who have reported that they are 
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial provisions of Section 23.1 of 
the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. These 
financial statements are in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards 
except with respect to the accounting treatment of government transfers.  

 
 
Statements 1 to 5 show the financial results for the school district on a consolidated basis for 
the operating, special purpose and capital funds.  (Statement 3 Remeasurement Gains and 
Losses does not apply to our district.)   
 
The Schedules report the financial information for each of the funds and are explained below. 
 
 
SCHEDULE 2: Schedule of Operating Operations 
SCHEDULE 2A: Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source 
SCHEDULE 2B: Schedule of Operating Expense by Object 
SCHEDULE 2C: Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object 
 
Schedules 2A, 2B and 2C provide details of the operating revenue and expense amounts which 
are summarized on Schedule 2.   

 
The Operating Fund had a net decrease of $3,030,863 in the current year, which when 
combined with the opening operating surplus balance of $22,800,427, results in the operating 
fund ending balance of $19,769,564.  The accounting principles do not permit outstanding 
commitments of any kind at the end of the school year to be included in the expenditure total; 
however all revenue sources must be included.  Consequently, the unspent amounts set aside 
to fund the commitments result in a positive cash position at the end of the school year.  See 
details of the commitment amounts shown below beside the heading “Operating Fund Internally 
Restricted Surplus”. 
 

  

2016/2017 2015/2016

Schedule 2 Schedule 2

Revenues 187,848,043$     180,321,189$     
Expenses 184,892,339      178,000,312      
Net Revenue (Expense) 2,955,704          2,320,877          
Interfund transfers - Capital Assets Purchased (5,986,567)         (1,296,116)         
Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year (3,030,863)$       1,024,761$        
Operating Surplus, beginning of year 22,800,427        21,775,666        
Operating Surplus, end of year 19,769,564$      22,800,427$      
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Operating Fund 
Internally 

Restricted Surplus 
and Unrestricted 

Surplus  
(Financial 

Statement Note 23) 

   2016-2017 2015-2016 
Secondary/ISP/CE School Funds  $  3,368,940 $  3,318,854 
Middle School Funds 610,794 680,981 
Elementary School Funds     1,399,693     1,736,095 
Total School Level Funds (Note A below) $  5,379,427 $  5,735,930 

 
Aboriginal Education Curriculum Sales and Grad Funds 188,700 155,653 
Professional Development Funds 197,453 321,096 
Department Carry Forward Funds 1,575,075 1,570,482 
Unspent Special Grants and Fees 1,768,509 1,702,944 
Total Unspent Project Budgets (Note B) $  3,729,737 $  3,750,175 

 
School Computer Replacements and Software 256,313 772,051 
School Equipment 130,602 61,504 
Curriculum Materials 129,420 0 
Vehicle Purchases 243,863 0 
All Other Purchase Orders 625,608 128,410 
Total Purchase Order Commitments (Note C) $  1,385,806 $  961,965 

 
Budgeted Planned Surplus (Note D) $  5,500,000 $  7,710,764 
Total Internally Restricted Surplus $15,994,970 $18,158,834 

Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Note E)      3,774,594      4,641,593 
Total Available for Future Operations   $19,769,564 $22,800,427 
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Operating Fund 
Internally 

Restricted Surplus 

 

Note A: Unspent funding at the school level at year end is carried 
forward into the next year's operating budget. This ensures 
that schools have the opportunity to accumulate balances for 
new textbooks for curriculum changes; equipment 
replacement/improvements (e.g. teaching kitchens and shop 
equipment); plan purchases and deliveries to tie in with the 
school year; and also avoids "year-end buying frenzies" in the 
District.  The school carry forward limits are under review. 

 

Note B: The category of unspent project budgets represents the 
funding required to complete projects.  Department carry 
forward funding is earmarked for specific initiatives which 
require the accumulation of multi-year budgeted amounts.  
Examples of grant funding/fee income received include 
Education Plan, Student Learning and ACE-IT. 

  
Note C: Total of all outstanding purchase orders that have not had 

goods and services received as at June 30 fiscal year end. 
This ensures that the budgeted funds for the commitment are 
carried forward and are available when the goods and services 
are received.  

 
Note D: Of the $5.5 million, $4.1 million has been appropriated for the 

2017/2018 Operating Budget and $1.4 million has been 
appropriated for the 2018/2019 Operating Budget. The primary 
factors contributing to the previously reported and approved 
planned budgeted surplus of $5.5 million include: 
 $1.8 million carry forward approved April 2016; 
 $3.7 million June 30, 2016 unrestricted operating surplus 

approved September 2016. 
 

Operating Fund 
Unrestricted 

surplus 

 
Note E: The unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 can be utilized 

for future budget plans.  It is primarily the result of increased 
revenue from enrolment growth, increased income from growth in 
the international student program enrolment, increased 
investment and rental income, delays in filling positions, utilities 
cost savings, unspent budgeted salary increases for principals, 
vice-principals and exempt staff, department budget savings, and 
lower actual employee benefit costs and average teacher salary 
costs than budgeted.  
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Schedule 2A  

Operating 
Revenue by 

Source 

 
The following outlines the major changes in Operating Revenues in the 
2016/2017 Financial Statements as compared to the 2015/2016 Financial 
Statements: 
 
1) Provincial Grants have increased by $6.6 million due to the following: 

 2016-2017 school age enrolment increase 176.6 FTE $1.3 million 
 Per pupil funding increase of $60/FTE $1.2 million 
 Targeted funding increase for ELL, ANED, SN, SS, CE $1.4 million 
 Teacher salary and funding formula increases $1.0 million 
 Return of administrative savings $0.8 million 
 Student Learning grant $0.9 million 
 

2) Tuition fees have increased $969K due to an increase in the international 
student program enrolment of 77 FTE and an increase in the short term 
programs offered. 

 
3) Other revenues have decreased $250K due to recording instructional 

cafeteria revenue under school generated funds in 2016-2017 and a 
decrease in miscellaneous fees and grants. 

 
4) Rentals and leases revenue has increased $164K primarily as a result of 

rental income from the Richmond Elementary school site. 
 

5) Investment income has increased $52K due to an increase in the 
investment total. 
 

 

2016/2017 2015/2016

Operating 

Revenues

Operating 

Revenues

Provincial Grants 168,767,439           162,170,343           
Tuition 14,787,726             13,818,673             
LEA/Direct Funding From First Nations 986,370                 991,683                 
Other Revenues 678,262                 928,851                 
Rentals and Leases 1,881,103              1,716,983              
Investment Income 747,143                 694,656                 
Total Operating Revenue 187,848,043           180,321,189
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Schedules 2B 
and 2C  

Operating 
Expense by 
Function, 

Program and 
Object 

 
The operating fund final expenditures indicate district spending of 84.6% on 
Instruction which is higher than the provincial average of 83.2 %.  District 
administration spending is 2.5% which is below the provincial average of 
3.4%.  Operations and Maintenance spending is 12.4% and is higher than the 
provincial average of 11.5% due to the age of our facilities.  Transportation 
and Housing spending is 0.6% as compared to the provincial average of 
1.9%. 
 

Schedules 3 & 
3A  

Special 
Purpose Funds 
 
 

 
Special Purpose Funds are funds received for specific purposes and must be 
used for those purposes.  The special purpose fund balances are as follows: 
 
  2016-2017  2015-2016  
School-Generated Funds  $3,034,714 $2,545,952               
Annual Facility Grant 65,075 17,476 
CommunityLINK 329,950 318,714 
Priority Measures 353,990 0 
Special Education Technology 30,972 0 
Coding & Curriculum Implementation 121,989 0 
StrongStart Centres 34,059 46,227 
Ready, Set, Learn 23,963 15,489 
Scholarship Trust 563,983 578,700 
Charitable Trust 700 900 
Estate Trust 49,584 44,248 
Attendance Support and Wellness            0 59,400 
 
Total Special Purpose Funds $4,608,979 $3,627,106 

2016/2017 

Provincial 

Average

Instruction 156,340,350       84.6% 83.2%
District Administration 4,575,541           2.5% 3.4%
Operations and Maintenance 22,958,100         12.4% 11.5%
Transportation and Housing 1,018,348           0.6% 1.9%

Total Operating Expenses 184,892,339       

2016/2017

Operating Expenses
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Schedules 3 & 
3A  

Special 
Purpose Funds 
 

The following outlines the major changes in the Special Purpose Funds in the 
2016/2017 Financial Statements as compared to the 2015/2016 Financial 
Statements: 
 
1) The School Generated Funds balance has increased $489K as a result of 

$267K additional revenue raised in 2016/2017 for sports/band/choir trips 
as well as playground equipment, and a decrease in the level of spending 
during the year. 
 

2) The Priority Measures grant funding was allocated in January 2017 to hire 
additional teachers as the first step in responding to the decision from the 
Supreme Court of Canada.  The allocation of the remaining balance of 
$353,990 will be determined in consultation with the Greater Victoria 
Teachers’ Association in the fall of 2017. 
 

3) Special Education Technology SET-BC Region 1 is part of the SET-BC 
Provincial Resource Program.  The remaining balance of $30,972 
represents salary savings from an employee who retired during the year.  
The balance will be recovered by the Ministry of Education. 

 
4) Coding and Curriculum Implementation is a new grant provided to support 

curriculum implementation, including a new mandatory coding 
requirement. 

 
5) The Ministry of Education provided a one-time special purpose grant in 

March 2015 to support implementation of the attendance support and 
wellness-related recommendations as part of the shared services initiative 
in the K-12 sector.  This grant funding has now been spent. 
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Schedules 4, 
4A, 4B, 4C, & 

4D 

Capital Fund 

With the implementation of full GAAP, assets are capitalized in accordance 
with GAAP definitions (e.g. betterments), and capital asset amortization is 
recorded.  Capital assets purchased out of operating and special purpose 
funds are shown on Schedule 1 as an interfund transfer to the Capital Fund.   
 
The change in capital assets is detailed in Schedule 4A.  Completed capital 
asset additions totalled $15.5 million of which equipment and vehicle 
additions totalled $1.0 million, computer hardware and software additions 
totalled $4.9 million and building improvements/seismic upgrades and 
replacement totalled $9.6 million primarily at Oak Bay High School, Esquimalt 
High School, and Cloverdale Elementary School, and fire/sprinkler upgrades 
at Victoria West Elementary School.  The buildings work in progress totals 
$1.5 million (Schedule 4B) related to the initial renovation work at the 
Burnside Education Centre, mechanical upgrades at Macaulay, Willows, and 
Sir James Douglas Elementary schools and additional education space.  
 
Capital asset dispositions include the deemed disposition of furniture and 
equipment, computer software and computer hardware that is fully amortized. 
 
Bylaw capital expenditures relate to the major capital program approved by 
the Ministry and are funded by Government through debt financing which is 
shown as deferred capital revenue in the financial statements (Schedule 4C).  
The seismic upgrade work at Cloverdale Elementary School, the building 
envelope work at Esquimalt High School and the replacement of Oak Bay 
High School are funded from bylaw capital.  
 
Other Provincial (Ministry of Education Restricted Capital) includes proceeds 
from the rental of assets which were originally purchased from bylaw capital 
and interest earned on the deferred capital revenue balance (Schedule 4C).  
All other provincial capital expenditures must be approved by the Ministry.  
Part of the seismic upgrade at Cloverdale Elementary School and the 
renovation of the Burnside Education Centre is being funded from other 
provincial capital. 
 
Local Capital includes proceeds from the rental of assets which were 
originally purchased from Board funds and interest earned on the local capital 
balance (Schedule 4).  Part of the replacement of Oak Bay High School is 
funded from local capital. 
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The following motions are recommended: 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
internally restricted surplus appropriation of $19,769,564 as shown on Schedule 2 of 
the Financial Statements , being held for school level funds $5,379,427 (Note A), 
unspent project budgets $3,729,737 (Note B), purchase order commitments 
$1,385,806 (Note C), and the previously approved budgeted surplus of $5,500,000 
(Note D); 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
$2,304,887 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) 
to be carried forward and applied towards the 2018/2019 projected deficit of 
$3,700,000 ($1,395,113 carry forward approved in April 2017 (Note D)); 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
$500,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) 
to provide supports for children and families in elementary schools; 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
$400,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) 
for facility environmental upgrades; 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
$199,300 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) 
to hire two technology support teachers, for one year, who will provide teacher support 
in the use of technology to enhance student learning within the revised curriculum; 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
$270,407 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) 
to provide learning resources to support the new curriculum; 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
$100,000 of the June 30, 2017 unrestricted operating surplus of $3,774,594 (Note E) 
to provide district-wide library support; 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
transfer of $211,782 to local capital for the student device replacement reserve; and 
 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
audited financial statements of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) for the year 
ended June 30, 2017; and that the Board Chair, the Superintendent and the Secretary-
Treasurer be authorized to execute these statements, where applicable, on behalf of 
the Board. 
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School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

On behalf of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Version: 8710-7964-5981

The external auditors, KPMG LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements. The external auditors have

full and free access to financial management of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) and meet when

required. The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their

examination and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) have been prepared by

management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and

Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the

Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are

management's responsibility. Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and

schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained

in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide

reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial

information is produced.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's

judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty

until future periods.

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) (called the ''Board'') is responsible for

ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises

these responsibilities through the Board. The Board reviews internal financial statements on a monthly basis and

externally audited financial statements yearly.
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Statement 1

2017 2016

Actual Actual

$ $

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 64,491,341        65,027,740        

Accounts Receivable

Due from Province - Ministry of Education 106,886             261,616             

Other (Note 3) 943,956             513,112             

Portfolio Investments (Note 4) 499,430             499,373             

Long-Term Accounts Receivable (Note 5) 458,827             603,451             

Total Financial Assets 66,500,440        66,905,292        

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Other (Note 7) 21,471,468        21,660,494        

Unearned Revenue (Note 8) 11,731,014        10,234,562        

Deferred Revenue (Note 9) 4,608,979          3,627,106          

Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 10) 190,852,147      191,836,223      

Employee Future Benefits (Note 11) 2,517,305          2,448,178          

Capital Lease Obligations (Note 12) -                         276,746             

Total Liabilities 231,180,913      230,083,309      

Net Financial Assets (Debt) (164,680,473)     (163,178,017)     

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 13) 233,597,213      231,791,603      

Prepaid Expenses 577,766             352,982             

Total Non-Financial Assets 234,174,979      232,144,585      

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 23) 69,494,506        68,966,568        

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2017

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies (Note 18, 20)

Approved by the Board

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Statement 2

2017 2017 2016

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 19)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 174,161,301      181,264,735      173,596,849      

Other 2,204                 

Municipal Grants Spent on Sites                     -

Tuition 11,120,452        14,787,726        13,818,673        

Other Revenue 7,361,200          8,069,686          8,491,233          

Rentals and Leases 1,678,812          1,885,131          1,722,121          

Investment Income 795,000             871,826             782,769             

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 14) 275,000             518,833             

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6,721,934          6,687,944          6,543,808          

Total Revenue 201,838,699      213,842,048      205,476,490      

Expenses

Instruction 170,249,405      172,683,404      166,288,675      

District Administration 4,556,622          4,575,541          4,274,267          

Operations and Maintenance 33,416,363        35,033,055        33,161,052        

Transportation and Housing 1,014,528          1,018,348          931,146             

Debt Services 3,762                 6,737                 

Write-off/down of Buildings and Sites 37,002               

Total Expense 209,236,918      213,314,110      204,698,879      

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (7,398,219)         527,938             777,611             

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 68,966,568        68,188,957        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 69,494,506        68,966,568        

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Statement 4

2017 2017 2016

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 19)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (7,398,219)         527,938             777,611             

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (11,825,580)       (11,464,040)       (13,489,505)       

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 9,083,417          9,658,430          9,006,685          

Write-down carrying value of Tangible Capital Assets 4,592,192          

Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (2,742,163)         (1,805,610)         109,372             

Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (224,784)            

Use of Prepaid Expenses 60,000               73,268               

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets 60,000               (224,784)            73,268               

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt),

     before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (10,080,382)       (1,502,456)         960,251             

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) (1,502,456)         960,251             

Net Financial Assets (Debt), beginning of year (163,178,017)     (164,138,268)     

Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year (164,680,473)     (163,178,017)     

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Statement 5

2017 2016

Actual Actual

$ $

Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 527,938            777,611            

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)

Accounts Receivable (131,490)          1,913,801         

Prepaid Expenses (224,784)          73,268              

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (991,204)          250,143            

Unearned Revenue 1,496,452         1,112,946         

Deferred Revenue 981,873            (282,108)          

Employee Future Benefits 69,127              26,519              

Other Liabilities 802,178            (2,381,808)       

Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (275,000)          (518,833)          

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 9,658,430         9,006,685         

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (6,687,944)       (6,543,808)       

Write-Off/down of Buildings and Sites -                       37,002              

Total Operating Transactions 5,225,576         3,471,418         

Capital Transactions

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (6,098,086)       (1,572,029)       

Tangible Capital Assets -WIP Purchased (5,365,954)       (11,917,476)     

District Portion of Proceeds on Disposal 275,000            125,000            

Bylaw Expenditures (1,597,187)       (1,543,616)       

Total Capital Transactions (12,786,227)     (14,908,121)     

Financing Transactions

Capital Revenue Received 7,301,055         12,519,685       

Capital Lease Principal Repayment (276,746)          (110,630)          

Total Financing Transactions 7,024,309         12,409,055       

Investing Transactions

Investments in Portfolio Investments (57)                   (57)                   

Total Investing Transactions (57)                   (57)                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (536,399)          972,295            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 65,027,740       64,055,445       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 64,491,341       65,027,740       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:

Cash 64,491,341       65,027,740       

64,491,341       65,027,740       

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8710-7964-5981
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School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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1. Authority and Purpose 
 
 The School District operates under the authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation 

under the name of “The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)” and operates as 
“School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria).” A Board of Education (“Board”) elected for a four-year term 
governs the School District.  The School District provides educational programs to students enrolled in 
schools in the District, and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia through the Ministry of 
Education. School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) is exempt from federal and provincial corporate income 
taxes. 

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  
 (a) Basis of Accounting 

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget 
Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This Section requires that 
the financial statements be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting 
standards except in regard to the accounting for government transfers as set out in Notes 2 (f) and 2 
(n).  
 
In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions Regulation 
198/2011 providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether they are received or 
receivable by the School District before or after this regulation was in effect.  
 
As noted in Notes 2 (f) and 2 (n), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act 
and its related regulations require the School District to recognize government transfers for the 
acquisition of capital assets into revenue on the same basis as the related amortization expense.  As 
these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability, Canadian public sector accounting 
standards would require these grants to be fully recognized into revenue.  

 
 (b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
  Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible to 

known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These cash 
equivalents generally have a maturity of three months or less at acquisition and are held for the 
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investing. 

 
 (c) Accounts Receivable 
 
  Accounts receivable are measured at amortized cost and are shown net of allowance for doubtful 

accounts. 
 
 (d) Portfolio Investments 
 
  The School District has investments in bonds that have a maturity of greater than 3 months at the 

time of acquisition. GICs, term deposits, bonds and other investments not quoted in an active market 
are reported at cost or amortized cost.   

 
  Detailed information regarding portfolio investments is disclosed in Note 4. 
 
 (e) Unearned Revenue 
 
  Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and 

receipt of proceeds for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be 
recognized in that future period when the services or products are delivered. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
  
 (f) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue 
 
  Deferred revenue includes both government transfers and other contributions received with 

stipulations that meet the description of restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions 
Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is 
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in a manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence 
used to support the initial recognition of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2 
(n).  

 
  Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred 

capital revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the Statement of 
Operations. This accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public 
sector accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue 
when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer contains a 
stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period 
that the liability is extinguished.  

 
 (g)  Employee Future Benefits 
 
  The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested 

benefits for qualified employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements.  
 
  The School District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and non-vested 

benefits under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-
vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. The 
benefits cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method pro-rated on service and 
using management’s best estimate of expected salary escalation, termination and retirement rates, 
and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based on the cost of borrowing. 

 
  The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected average 

remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan.  
 
  The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2016 and projected to June 

30, 2019. The next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2019 for use at June 30, 2019. For the 
purposes of determining the financial position of the plans and the employee future benefit costs, a 
measurement date of March 31 was adopted for all periods subsequent to July 1, 2004.  

 
  The School District and its employees make contributions to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and 

Municipal Pension Plan. The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are not 
separated. The costs are expensed as incurred. 

 
 (h) Asset Retirement Obligations 
 
  Liabilities are recognized for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated with the retirement 

of tangible capital assets when those obligations result from the acquisition, construction, 
development or normal operation of the assets. The obligations are measured initially at fair value, 
determined using present value methodology, and the resulting costs capitalized into the carrying 
amount of the related tangible capital asset. In subsequent periods, the liability is adjusted for 
accretion and any changes in the amount or timing of the underlying future cash flows. The 
capitalized asset retirement cost is amortized on the same basis as the related asset and accretion 
expense is included in the Statement of Operations.  
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 (i) Liability for Contaminated Sites 
 

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of 
a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.  
The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for remediation of contaminated 
sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the following criteria are met: 
 
• an environmental standard exists; 
• contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 
• the School District is directly responsible or accepts responsibility;  
• it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
• a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

 
  The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including 

operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a 
contaminated site. At this time the School District has determined there are no liabilities for 
contaminated sites.  

 
 (j) Tangible Capital Assets 
 
  The following criteria apply: 
 

• Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes amounts that 
are directly related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or 
betterment of the assets. Cost also includes overhead directly attributable to construction, as well 
as interest costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset.  

• Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of donation, 
except in circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, which are then 
recognized at nominal value. Transfers of capital assets from related parties are recorded at 
carrying value.  

• Work in Progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial 
completion.  Work in Progress is not amortized until the asset is utilized.  

• Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they no 
longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services or when the value of 
future economic benefits associated with the sites and buildings are less than their net book 
value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of Operations.  

• Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off.  
• Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these 

financial statements.  
• The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a 

straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.  One-half of the amortization is 
recorded in the year of acquisition. It is management’s responsibility to determine the appropriate 
useful lives for tangible capital assets. These useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis or if 
significant events initiate the need to revise.  Estimated useful lives are as follows:  

 
   Buildings    40 years 
   Site Improvements   10 years 
   Furniture and Equipment  10 years 
   Vehicles    10 years 
   Computer Software     5 years 
   Computer Hardware     5 years 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 (k) Capital Leases 
   
 Leases that, from the point of view of the lessee, transfer substantially all the benefits and risks 

incident to ownership of the property to the School District are considered capital leases. These are 
accounted for as an asset and an obligation. Capital lease obligations are recorded at the present 
value of the minimum lease payments excluding executor costs, e.g. insurance, maintenance costs, 
etc. The discount rate used to determine the present value of the lease payments is the lower of the 
School District’s rate for incremental borrowing or the interest rate implicit in the lease.  

 
 All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to 

expenses as incurred.  
 
 (l) Prepaid Expenses 
 
 Payments for insurance, subscriptions, and maintenance contracts for use within the School District 

in a future period are included as a prepaid expense and stated at acquisition cost and are charged 
to expenses over the periods expected to benefit from it. Textbooks and other teaching supplies are 
expensed as purchased. 

 
 (m) Funds and Reserves 
 
 Certain amounts, as approved by the Board, are set aside in accumulated surplus for future 

operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to the 
respective fund when approved (see Note 16 – Interfund Transfers and Note 23 – Accumulated 
Surplus). 

 
 (n) Revenue Recognition 

 
Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events 
occurred that gave rise to the revenues. The amounts are considered to be collectible and can be 
reasonably estimated.  

 
Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue except 
where the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility criteria are the 
criteria that the School District has to meet in order to receive the contributions including 
authorization by the transferring government.  

 
For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, 
revenue is recognized as follows:  

 
• Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized 

as revenue in the year related expenses are incurred,  
• Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are 

purchased, and  
• Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are recorded as 

deferred capital revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related assets.  
 

Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized over 
the useful life of the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when 
received or receivable. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

 (n) Revenue Recognition (continued) 
 
The accounting treatment for restricted contributions that are government transfers is not consistent 
with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government 
transfers be recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been 
met unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for liability recognition in which 
case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished.  
 
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is 
performed is deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed.  

 
Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or related 
Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue balance. 

 
 (o) Expenditures 
 
  Expenses are reported on an accrual basis.  The cost of all goods consumed and services received 

during the year is expensed.  Interest expense includes interest paid on the capital lease obligation. 
 

Allocation of Costs 
 
• Operating expenses are reported by function, program and object.  Whenever possible, 

expenses are determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to specific 
instructional programs, such as special and aboriginal education, are allocated to these 
programs.  All other costs are allocated to related programs. 

• Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated based 
on the time spent in each function and program.  School-based clerical and principal and vice-
principal salaries are allocated to school administration and may be partially allocated to other 
programs to recognize their other responsibilities. 

• Employee benefits are allocated on a pro rata basis of overall salary expenses within each salary 
category. 

• Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification. 
 

 (p) Financial Instruments 
 

  A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to 
receive or deliver economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these rights 
and obligations in the financial statements. The School District recognizes a financial instrument 
when it becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.   

 
  Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, long-term accounts 

receivable, investments, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and other current liabilities. The 
School District does not have any derivative financial instruments.  

 
  All financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated 

transaction costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition. 
Transaction costs are incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial 
asset or a financial liability. The School District has not invested in any equity instruments that are 
actively quoted in the market and has not designated any financial instruments to be recorded at fair 
value. The School District has no instruments in the fair value category. 

   
For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is used to 
determine interest revenue or expense.  
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
 (p) Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
  The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value, unless otherwise 

noted. 
 
  All financial assets are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets are impaired, 

impairment losses are recorded in the Statement of Operations. A write-down of a portfolio 
investment to reflect a loss in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.   

 
 (q) Measurement Uncertainty 

 
  Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 2 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting 
periods. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the potential 
impairment of assets, rates for amortization and estimated employee future benefits. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

 
 (r) Comparative Figures 
 
  Certain comparative figures presented in the financial statements have been reclassified to conform 

with the financial statement presentation adopted in the current year. 
 
3. Accounts Receivable – Other Receivables 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Due from Agencies and Associations $          179,805 $          210,300 

Due from Government of Canada     162,077 125,114 

Other Receivables 602,074 177,698 

 $          943,956 $          513,112 

 
4. Portfolio Investments 

 
Portfolio investments is comprised of a 7.6% Province of Ontario Bond maturing June 2, 2027. The market 
value of the investments as of June 30, 2017 was $0.7 million (2016: $0.8 million). 
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5. Long-Term Accounts Receivable 
 

The School District has entered into an agreement for the lease of Hampton Elementary School for a 99-
year term commencing March 1, 2006. The lease involves land and building and is accounted for 
separately. The building is being accounted for as a sales-type lease, whereby finance income is 
recognized in a manner that produces a constant rate of return on the investment in the lease. The implicit 
discount rate in the lease is 4%. The land is being accounted for as an operating lease.  Rental income on 
the lease of $70,901 (2016: $76,247) is included in deferred capital revenue of the Capital fund. The final 
Hampton lease payment is due on March 1, 2020.   

 
The School District’s net investment in the lease is comprised of net minimum lease payments and 
unearned finance income as follows: 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Hampton Building Lease Payment Receivable:   

  Total Minimum Lease Payments 482,203 642,937 

  Unearned Finance Income (23,376) (39,486) 

 $          458,827 $          603,451 

 
6. Bank Indebtedness 
 

The School District has an unutilized line of credit facility agreement with the CIBC, dated March 12, 2009, 
in the amount of $1,500,000. 

 
7. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities – Other 

 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Trade Payables $       1,857,039 $       2,908,622 

Salaries and Benefits Payable     11,421,330 10,733,670 

Accrued Vacation Pay 1,570,522 1,933,007 

Holdback Payables 31,293 316,445 

Other 6,591,284 5,768,750 

 $     21,471,468 $     21,660,494 

 
Accounts Payable includes International Student Program fees in the amount of $5,928,785 (2016: 
$4,967,682): homestay fees of $4,669,556 (2016: $3,951,836) and medical fees of $1,259,229 (2016: 
$1,015,846). These amounts are collected and paid by the School District on behalf of the International 
Student Program. The same amount included in cash and cash equivalents is restricted and not available 
for general use. 
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8. Unearned Revenue 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Unearned Revenue, Beginning of Year $     10,234,562 $       9,121,616 

   

Changes for the Year:   

  Increase:   

    Tuition fees 15,945,351 14,768,705 

    Rentals 1,870,873 1,725,893 

    Other 230,600 - 

    Summer school 51,865 77,720 

 18,098,689 16,572,318 

  Decrease:   

    Tuition fees 14,703,438 13,657,187 

    Rentals 1,881,103 1,716,983 

    Summer school 17,696 85,202 

 16,602,237 15,459,372 

   

Net Changes for the Year 1,496,452 1,112,946 

   

Unearned Revenue, End of Year $     11,731,014 $     10,234,562 

 
9. Deferred Revenue 
  

Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a 
restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board, i.e. 
the stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been fulfilled.  
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Deferred Revenue, Beginning of Year $       3,627,106 $       3,909,214 

   

Changes for the Year:   

  Increase:   

    Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 11,402,802 9,555,979 

    Other 6,893,616 6,582,381 

    Investment Income 79,833 77,339 

 18,376,251 16,215,699 

  Decrease:   

    Allocation to Revenue 17,394,378 16,497,807 

 17,394,378 16,497,807 

   

Net Changes for the Year 981,873 (282,108) 

   

Deferred Revenue, End of Year $       4,608,979 $       3,627,106 
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10. Deferred Capital Revenue 
  

Deferred capital revenue includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the contributor for 
the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted contribution in the 
Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once spent, the contributions are 
amortized into revenue over the life of the asset acquired.  

 
Deferred Capital Revenue: 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Deferred Capital Revenue, Beginning of Year $   181,208,233 $   184,814,411 

   

Changes for the Year:   

  Increase:   

    Transferred from Deferred Capital Revenue - Work in Progress 9,380,507 7,492,820 

 9,380,507 7,492,820 

  Decrease:   

    Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6,687,944 6,543,808 

    Write-off of Oak Bay Building - 4,555,190 

 6,687,944 11,098,998 

   

Net Changes for the Year 2,692,563 (3,606,178) 

   

Deferred Capital Revenue, End of Year $   183,900,796 $   181,208,233 

 
Deferred Capital Revenue – Work in Progress: 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Work in Progress, Beginning of Year $     5,465,381 $     1,760,888 

   

Changes for the Year:   

  Increase:   

    Transferred from Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue 5,365,954 11,197,313 

 5,365,954 11,197,313 

  Decrease:   

    Transferred to Deferred Capital Revenue 9,380,507 7,492,820 

 9,380,507 7,492,820 

   

Net Changes for the Year (4,014,553) 3,704,493 

   

Work in Progress, End of Year $     1,450,828 $     5,465,381 
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10. Deferred Capital Revenue (Continued) 
 

Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue: 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue, Beginning of Year $       5,162,609 $       5,777,686 

   

Changes for the Year:   

  Increase:   

    Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 5,721,373 11,310,985 

    Provincial Grants - Other 405,409 - 

    Other 344,772 831,553 

    Investment Income 4,501 2,147 

    MEd Restricted Portion of Proceeds on Disposal 825,000 375,000 

 7,301,055 12,519,685 

  Decrease:   

    Transferred to Deferred Capital Revenue - Work in Progress 5,365,954 11,197,313 

    Bylaw Expenditures 1,597,187 1,543,616 

    Loss on Disposal of 950 Kings Rd. - 393,833 

 6,963,141 13,134,762 

   

Net Changes for the Year 337,914 (615,077) 

   

Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue, End of Year $       5,500,523 $       5,162,609 

   

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, End of Year $   190,852,147 $   191,836,223 

 
11. Employee Future Benefits 

 
The School District provides certain benefits upon retirement including vested sick leave, accumulating 
non-vested sick leave, lump sum retirement payments, vacation, overtime and death benefits for qualified 
employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. Funding is provided when the benefits are 
paid and accordingly, there are no plan assets. Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, the School 
District has provided for the payment of these benefits.  

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit 
obligations are: 

 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Discount Rate - April 1 2.50% 2.25% 

Discount Rate - March 31     2.75% 2.50% 

Long-Term Salary Growth - April 1 2.50%+seniority 2.50%+seniority 

Long-Term Salary Growth - March 31 2.50%+seniority 2.50%+seniority 

Expected Average Remaining Service Lifetime - March 31 9.7 9.7 
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11. Employee Future Benefits (Continued) 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

   

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation:   

Accrued Benefit Obligation - April 1 $       2,788,523 $       2,566,787 

Service Cost 228,622 219,203 

Interest Cost 70,630 59,555 

Benefit Payments (303,652) (259,626) 

Actuarial Loss (125,871) 202,604 

Accrued Benefit Obligation - March 31 $       2,658,252 $       2,788,523 

   

Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year:   

Accrued Benefit Obligation - March 31 $       2,658,252 $       2,788,523 

Market Value of Plan Assets - March 31 - - 

Funded Status - Deficit (2,658,252) (2,788,523) 

Employer Contributions After Measurement Date 22,064 57,375 

Benefit Expense After Measurement Date (75,796) (74,813) 

Unamortized Net Actuarial Loss 194,679 357,783 

Accrued Benefit Liability - June 30 $     (2,517,305) $     (2,448,178) 

   

Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability:   

Accrued Benefit Liability - July 1 $       2,448,178 $       2,421,659 

Net Expense for Fiscal Year 337,468 300,227 

Employer Contributions (268,341) (273,708) 

Accrued Benefit Liability - June 30 $       2,517,305 $       2,448,178 

   
Components of Net Benefit Expense:   

Service Cost $          228,503 $          221,558 

Interest Cost 71,732 62,324 

Amortization of Net Actuarial Loss 37,233 16,345 

Net Benefit Expense $          337,468 $          300,227 

 
12. Capital Lease Obligations 
  
 The School District entered into four capital leases for computer hardware with MFA Leasing Corporation 

during the years ended June 30, 2013, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2015. The leases had expiration dates 
of December 28, 2017, July 28, 2018, October 28, 2018 and October 28, 2019. The capital leases were 
fully repaid during fiscal year 2017. 

  
 For the year ended June 30, 2017, the School District recorded interest expense on the obligations under 

capital leases of $3,762 (2016: $6,737). 
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13. Tangible Capital Assets 
 

June 30, 2017 
 

Cost: 
Balance at 

June 30, 2016 
Additions 

Disposals / 
Reclassification

Transfers
(WIP)

Balance at 
June 30, 2017 

Sites $     10,833,717 $                 - $                  - $                   - $     10,833,717 
Site Improvements – WIP 1,450,000 250,000 - (1,700,000) - 
Site Improvements - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 
Buildings 336,251,946 385,870 - 7,471,313 344,109,129 
Buildings – WIP 4,015,382 4,905,812 - (7,471,313) 1,449,881 
Furniture & Equipment 6,489,956 768,888 (705,673) 177,847 6,731,018 
Furniture & Equipment – WIP - 178,371 - (177,847) 524 
Vehicles 704,128 47,416 (127,551) - 623,993 
Computer Software 290,883 47,244 (17,414) - 320,713 
Computer Hardware 3,351,569 4,848,668 (65,829) 31,347 8,165,755 
Computer Hardware – WIP - 31,771 - (31,347) 424 
Hardware under capital lease 557,821 - (557,821) - - 

Total $   363,945,402 $11,464,040 $ (1,474,288)  $                   - $   373,935,154 

 
 

Accumulated Amortization: 
Balance at 

June 30, 2016 
Additions 

Disposals / 
Reclassification

Transfers
(WIP)

Balance at 
June 30, 2017 

Sites $                     - $                  - $                  - $                   - $                     - 
Site Improvements - 85,000 - - 85,000 
Buildings 127,380,470 7,471,535 - - 134,852,005 
Furniture & Equipment 2,809,642 696,332 (705,673) - 2,800,301 
Vehicles 343,474 72,783 (127,551) - 288,706 
Computer Software 49,983 62,901 (17,414) - 95,470 
Computer Hardware 1,303,538 1,228,042 (315,121) - 2,216,459 
Hardware under capital lease 266,692 41,837 (308,529) - - 

Total $  132,153,799 $   9,658,430 $   (1,474,288)  $                   - $  140,337,941 
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13. Tangible Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
June 30, 2016 

 

Cost: 
Balance at 

July 1, 2015 
Additions 

Disposals / 
Reclassification

Transfers
(WIP)

Balance at 
June 30, 2016 

Sites $     10,833,717 $                 - $                  - $                   - $     10,833,717 
Site Improvements – WIP - 1,450,000 - - 1,450,000 
Buildings 341,485,174 2,512 (12,309,514) 7,073,774 336,251,946 
Buildings – WIP 1,760,888 9,328,268 - (7,073,774) 4,015,382 
Furniture & Equipment 5,413,717 1,508,362 (432,123) - 6,489,956 
Vehicles 751,880 92,680 (140,432) - 704,128 
Computer Software 34,826 256,057 - - 290,883 
Computer Hardware 3,003,328 851,626 (503,385) - 3,351,569 
Hardware under capital lease 557,821 - - - 557,821 

Total $   363,841,351 $13,489,505 $ (13,385,454)  $                   - $   363,945,402 

 
 

Accumulated Amortization: 
Balance at 

July 1, 2015 
Additions 

Disposals / 
Reclassification

Transfers
(WIP)

Balance at 
June 30, 2016 

Sites $                     - $                  - $                  - $                   - $                     - 
Buildings 127,617,682 7,480,110 (7,717,322) - 127,380,470 
Furniture & Equipment 2,624,975 616,790 (432,123) - 2,809,642 
Vehicles 404,084 79,822 (140,432) - 343,474 
Computer Software 17,412 32,571 - - 49,983 
Computer Hardware 1,121,095 685,828 (503,385) - 1,303,538 
Hardware under capital lease 155,128 111,564 - - 266,692 

Total $  131,940,376 $   9,006,685 $   (8,793,262)  $                   - $  132,153,799 

 
Net Book Value: 

 

 Net Book Value 
June 30, 2017 

Net Book Value 
June 30, 2016 

Sites $     10,833,717 $     10,833,717 

Site Improvements – WIP - 1,450,000 

Site Improvements 1,615,000 - 

Buildings     209,257,124 208,871,476 

Buildings – WIP 1,449,881 4,015,382 

Furniture & Equipment 3,930,717 3,680,314 

Furniture & Equipment – WIP 524 - 

Vehicles 335,287 360,654 

Computer Software 225,243 240,900 

Computer Hardware 5,949,296 2,048,031 

Computer Hardware – WIP 424 - 

Hardware under capital lease - 291,129 

 $   233,597,213 $   231,791,603 

 
Buildings – Work in Progress having a value of $1,449,881 (2016: $4,015,382) Furniture & Equipment – 
Work in Progress having a value of $524 (2016: $0) and Computer Hardware – Work in Progress $424 
(2016: $0) have not been amortized. Amortization of these assets commence when the asset is put into 
service. Hardware under capital lease having a value of $557,821 less 308,529 Accumulated Amortization 
was moved into Computer Hardware as the lease was fully repaid during fiscal year 2017. 
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14. Disposal of Site 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the fee simple interest in a portion of the parcel of real property 
situated at 3751 Grange Road, Victoria, BC was sold for proceeds of $1,100,000. The total gain on the sale 
of the property was $1,100,000, which was allocated 75% to Ministry of Education Restricted Capital within 
Deferred Capital Revenue ($825,000) and 25% to Local Capital ($275,000).  The original cost of the 
property is undeterminable. 

 
15. Employee Pension Plans 
  

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal Pension 
Plan (jointly trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing plan members 
and employers, are responsible for administering the pension plans, including investing assets and 
administering benefits. The plans are multi-employer defined benefit pension plans.  Basic pension benefits 
are based on a formula. At December 31, 2015, the Teachers’ Pension Plan has about 45,000 active 
members and approximately 36,000 retired members. As of December 31, 2015, the Municipal Pension 
Plan has about 189,000 active members, including approximately 24,000 from school districts.  
 
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans and 
adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member 
contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age 
normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient 
to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. This rate is then adjusted to the extent there is 
amortization of any funding deficit. 
 
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2014 indicated a 
$449 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.   
 
The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015 indicated a 
$2,224 million surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.   
 
The Greater Victoria School District paid $17,057,974 for employer contributions to these plans in the year 
ended June 30, 2017 (2016: $18,225,520).  
 
The next valuation for the Teachers’ Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2017, with results available 
in 2018. The next valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2018, with results 
available in 2019. 
 
Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions 
made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plans 
record accrued liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and 
reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the 
plans. 
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16. Interfund Transfers 
 
 Interfund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds for the year ended June 30, 

2017 were as follows: 
 

• Transfer to the capital fund for tangible capital assets purchased from the operating fund $5,494,277. 
• Transfer to the capital fund for tangible capital assets purchased from the special purpose fund 

$231,985. 
• Transfer from the operating fund to the capital fund (local capital) $280,508 for capital lease payments. 
• Transfer from the operating fund to the capital fund (local capital) $211,782 for the student device 

replacement reserve. 
 
17. Related Party Transactions 
 

The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia ministries, 
agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown corporations. Transactions 
with these entities, unless disclosed separately, are considered to be in the normal course of operations 
and are recorded at the exchange amount. 

 
18. Contractual Obligations 
 

The School District has entered into contracts for Youth and Family Counselling services totalling $1.4 M. 
and transportation totalling $1.0 M. At June 30, 2017, the School District had $1.4 M of purchase orders 
remaining. These contractual obligations will become liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts 
are met. Disclosure relates to the unperformed portion of the contracts. 

  
19. Budget Figures 
 
 Budget figures were approved by the Board through the adoption of an annual budget on April 20, 2016.  
 
20. Contingencies 
 

The School District, in conducting its usual business activities, is involved in various legal claims and 
litigation. In the event any unsettled claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not 
expected to have a material effect on the School District’s financial position. A liability for these claims is 
recorded to the extent that the probability of a loss is likely and the amount of potential loss is estimable.  

 
21. Asset Retirement Obligation 
 

As at June 30, 2017, the School District has identified asset retirement obligations relating to asbestos 
removal in several of its facilities. The asset retirement obligations have not been recognized where there is 
an indeterminate settlement date of the future demolition or renovation of the facilities, and therefore the 
fair value cannot be reasonably estimated. The asset retirement obligation will be recognized as a liability in 
the period when the fair value can be reasonably estimated. 
 
At this time the School District has determined that there are no asset retirement obligations.  
 

  

65



School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 

 

     Page 23 

22. Expense by Object 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Salaries and Benefits $   172,913,336 $   167,054,925 

Services and Supplies           30,738,582       28,593,530 

Interest 3,762 6,737 

Amortization 9,658,430 9,006,685 

Write-off/down of Buildings and Sites - 37,002 

 $   213,314,110 $   204,698,879 

 
23. Accumulated Surplus  
 

The Internally Restricted Operating Funds represent the amount of funds committed for planned 
educational activities at the school level; for the completion of projects in progress at June 30, 2016; for 
outstanding purchase order commitments; and for the amounts approved for the 2016/2017 and 2017/2018 
operating budgets. The Internally Restricted Capital Fund represents the balance from the Local Capital 
Reserve. The use of Local Capital is entirely at the discretion of the School District. Appropriations from 
Local Capital are made to finance projects as determined by the Board. 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 

Internally Restricted - Operating Fund   

  Carry Forward of Unspent School Budgets $       5,379,427 $       5,735,930 

  Carry Forward of Unspent Project Budgets     3,729,737 3,750,175 

  Purchase Order Commitments 1,385,806 961,965 

  Appropriated for Future Years’ Operating Budget 5,500,000 7,710,764 

 15,994,970 18,158,834 

Internally Restricted - Capital Fund   

    Local Capital Reserve 5,993,508 5,839,053 

   

Total Internally Restricted Fund Balances      21,988,478      23,997,887 

Unrestricted Operating Surplus 3,774,594 4,641,593 

Invested in Tangible Capital Assets 43,731,434 40,327,088 

   

Accumulated Surplus $     69,494,506 $     68,966,568 

 
24. Economic Dependence 
 

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of Education 
and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs. These financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. 

 
25. Risk Management 
 

The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, 
market risk and liquidity risk.  
 
The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks and ensures that management monitors 
and controls them.  
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25. Risk Management (Continued) 
 

a) Credit risk:  
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to an institution if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from certain financial 
assets held consisting of cash, amounts receivable and investments.  
 
The School District is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by a debtor. This risk is 
mitigated as most amounts receivable are due from the Province and are collectible.  

 
It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed to significant credit risk associated 
with its cash deposits and investments as they are placed in recognized British Columbia institutions 
and the School District invests solely in bonds and guaranteed investment certificates.   

 
b) Market risk: 

 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk is comprised of currency risk and interest rate risk.  
 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in the foreign exchange rates. It is management’s opinion that the School 
District is not exposed to significant currency risk, as amounts held and purchases made in foreign 
currency are insignificant.  

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The School District is exposed to interest 
rate risk through its investments. It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed 
to significant interest rate risk as they invest solely in bonds and guaranteed investment 
certificates. 

 
c) Liquidity risk  

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
become due. 
 
The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash flows 
from operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the School District’s reputation.  

 
Risk management and insurance services for all school districts in British Columbia are provided by the 
Risk Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance. 
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Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2017 2016

Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 22,800,427          46,166,141          68,966,568          68,188,957          

Changes for the year

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 2,955,704            231,985               (2,659,751)           527,938               777,611               

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (5,494,277)           (231,985)              5,726,262            -                           

Local Capital (492,290)              492,290               -                           

Net Changes for the year (3,030,863)           -                           3,558,801            527,938               777,611               

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 19,769,564          -                           49,724,942          69,494,506          68,966,568          

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2017 2017 2016

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 19)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 163,065,789     168,767,439     162,168,139     

Other 2,204                

Tuition 11,120,452       14,787,726       13,818,673       

Other Revenue 1,160,200         1,664,632         1,920,534         

Rentals and Leases 1,674,784         1,881,103         1,716,983         

Investment Income 650,000            747,143            694,656            

Total Revenue 177,671,225     187,848,043     180,321,189     

Expenses

Instruction 154,957,145     156,340,350     151,129,039     

District Administration 4,556,622         4,575,541         4,274,267         

Operations and Maintenance 22,253,694       22,958,100       21,665,860       

Transportation and Housing 1,014,528         1,018,348         931,146            

Total Expense 182,781,989     184,892,339     178,000,312     

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (5,110,764)       2,955,704         2,320,877         

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 5,910,764         

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (800,000)          (5,494,277)       (1,178,749)       

Local Capital (492,290)          (117,367)          

Total Net Transfers (800,000)          (5,986,567)       (1,296,116)       

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                        (3,030,863)       1,024,761         

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 22,800,427       21,775,666       

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 19,769,564       22,800,427       

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted (Note 23) 15,994,970       18,158,834       

Unrestricted 3,774,594         4,641,593         

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 19,769,564       22,800,427       

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Schedule of Operating Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2017 2017 2016

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 19)

$ $ $

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education 160,733,977     164,765,932     159,847,894     

INAC/LEA Recovery (1,023,960)       (986,370)          (991,683)          

Other Ministry of Education Grants

Pay Equity 2,896,617         2,896,617         2,896,617         

Funding for Graduated Adults -                        37,952              38,235              

Transportation Supplement -                        20,027              

Economic Stability Dividend -                        101,450            139,493            

Return of Administrative Savings -                        827,353            

Carbon Tax Grant -                        127,977            143,221            

Student Learning Grant -                        955,761            

Ad Hoc Refugee Count -                        -                       40,770              

FSA Scorer Training -                        17,740              18,842              

Curriculum Implementation -                        -                       29,750              

Other Grants -                        3,000                5,000                

Additional Supplement Distribution 459,155            -                       -                        

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 163,065,789     168,767,439     162,168,139     

Provincial Grants - Other -                        -                       2,204                

Tuition

Summer School Fees 27,169              17,696              85,202              

Continuing Education 58,124              66,592              76,284              

International and Out of Province Students 11,035,159       14,703,438       13,657,187       

Total Tuition 11,120,452       14,787,726       13,818,673       

Other Revenues

Other School District/Education Authorities -                        2,700                2,700                

LEA/Direct Funding from First Nations 1,023,960         986,370            991,683            

Miscellaneous

Industry Training Secondary Schools -                        97,200              117,400            

Instructional Cafeteria Revenue -                        -                       141,385            

Aboriginal Nations Education Curriculum Project 8,000                24,374              21,846              

Misc Fees and Grants 48,240              553,988            645,520            

Parent Contributions 80,000              -                       -                        

Total Other Revenue 1,160,200         1,664,632         1,920,534         

Rentals and Leases 1,674,784         1,881,103         1,716,983         

Investment Income 650,000            747,143            694,656            

Total Operating Revenue 177,671,225     187,848,043     180,321,189     

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2017 2017 2016

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 19)

$ $ $

Salaries

Teachers 79,934,858       80,199,425       76,853,160       

Principals and Vice Principals 11,438,642       10,811,359       10,517,371       

Educational Assistants 15,722,720       16,759,453       15,396,288       

Support Staff 16,828,220       16,481,061       16,041,575       

Other Professionals 3,645,069         3,463,181         3,517,909         

Substitutes 6,666,719         7,989,295         7,932,966         

Total Salaries 134,236,228     135,703,774     130,259,269     

Employee Benefits 31,288,112       30,004,741       30,677,839       

Total Salaries and Benefits 165,524,340     165,708,515     160,937,108     

Services and Supplies

Services 4,319,957         6,880,929         6,172,216         

Student Transportation 998,933            1,086,592         1,014,645         

Professional Development and Travel 580,786            1,227,406         896,914            

Rentals and Leases 98,188              -                                               -

Dues and Fees 84,712              118,028            96,513              

Insurance 442,842            396,831            417,263            

Interest -                        -                       -                        

Supplies 5,750,864         4,975,430         4,685,426         

Utilities 4,981,367         4,498,608         3,780,227         

Total Services and Supplies 17,257,649       19,183,824       17,063,204       

Total Operating Expense 182,781,989     184,892,339     178,000,312     

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other

Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total

Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 61,439,490        3,541,832          1,823,610          190,932             270,323             5,745,899          73,012,086        

1.03 Career Programs 649,756             111,774             275,095             37,060               -                         75,290               1,148,975          

1.07 Library Services 1,746,615          57,808               -                         361,895             -                         56,619               2,222,937          

1.08 Counselling 2,101,678          14,020               -                         -                         -                         47,138               2,162,836          

1.10 Special Education 7,323,453          801,993             13,359,023        416,201             62,520               1,009,790          22,972,980        

1.30 English Language Learning 940,872             203,068             533,746             19,794               -                         73,651               1,771,131          

1.31 Aboriginal Education 548,064             46,057               586,410             41,053               105,974             57,648               1,385,206          

1.41 School Administration -                         5,933,351          -                         3,463,321          -                         60,899               9,457,571          

1.60 Summer School 158,866             -                         2,804                 8,399                 -                         -                         170,069             

1.61 Continuing Education 180,332             50,775               12,981               68,098               -                         6,317                 318,503             

1.62 International and Out of Province Students 5,058,340          -                         131,307             673,136             506,381             298,885             6,668,049          

1.64 Other -                         -                         -                         9,878                 -                         -                         9,878                 

Total Function 1 80,147,466        10,760,678        16,724,976        5,289,767          945,198             7,432,136          121,300,221      

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration -                         15,073               -                         151,949             677,457             16,951               861,430             

4.40 School District Governance -                         -                         -                         27,665               188,873             -                         216,538             

4.41 Business Administration -                         35,608               -                         1,041,470          1,050,960          13,028               2,141,066          

Total Function 4 -                         50,681               -                         1,221,084          1,917,290          29,979               3,219,034          

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 51,959               -                         34,477               263,362             489,087             17,281               856,166             

5.50 Maintenance Operations -                         -                         -                         8,915,914          111,606             348,184             9,375,704          

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds -                         -                         -                         763,730             -                         161,715             925,445             

5.56 Utilities -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Function 5 51,959               -                         34,477               9,943,006          600,693             527,180             11,157,315        

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration -                         -                         -                         27,204               -                         -                         27,204               

7.70 Student Transportation -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

7.73 Housing -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Function 7 -                         -                         -                         27,204               -                         -                         27,204               

9 Debt Services

9.92 Interest on Bank Loans -                         

9.94 Interest on Temporary Borrowing -                         

Total Function 9 -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Functions 1 - 9 80,199,425        10,811,359        16,759,453        16,481,061        3,463,181          7,989,295          135,703,774      

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction

1.03 Career Programs

1.07 Library Services

1.08 Counselling

1.10 Special Education

1.30 English Language Learning

1.31 Aboriginal Education

1.41 School Administration

1.60 Summer School

1.61 Continuing Education

1.62 International and Out of Province Students

1.64 Other

Total Function 1

4 District Administration

4.11 Educational Administration

4.40 School District Governance

4.41 Business Administration

Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance

5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration

5.50 Maintenance Operations

5.52 Maintenance of Grounds

5.56 Utilities

Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing

7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration

7.70 Student Transportation

7.73 Housing

Total Function 7

9 Debt Services

9.92 Interest on Bank Loans

9.94 Interest on Temporary Borrowing

Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2017
2017 2017 2016

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual

Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 19)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

73,012,086        16,483,556        89,495,642        3,700,153          93,195,795        93,932,028        90,437,386        

1,148,975          256,171             1,405,146          38,689               1,443,835          1,936,839          1,225,423          

2,222,937          505,367             2,728,304          160,366             2,888,670          2,711,181          2,751,780          

2,162,836          485,093             2,647,929          6,612                 2,654,541          2,538,308          2,562,885          

22,972,980        4,966,349          27,939,329        841,715             28,781,044        28,206,082        27,802,308        

1,771,131          398,917             2,170,048          154,219             2,324,267          2,282,053          1,825,049          

1,385,206          255,642             1,640,848          478,511             2,119,359          2,033,981          2,101,712          

9,457,571          1,891,676          11,349,247        272,872             11,622,119        12,503,225        12,088,211        

170,069             38,647               208,716             11,182               219,898             163,953             222,402             

318,503             72,330               390,833             16,519               407,352             351,736             558,669             

6,668,049          1,487,062          8,155,111          2,515,770          10,670,881        8,285,168          9,540,747          

9,878                 2,453                 12,331               258                    12,589               12,591               12,467               

121,300,221      26,843,263        148,143,484      8,196,866          156,340,350      154,957,145      151,129,039      

861,430             179,107             1,040,537          79,089               1,119,626          1,225,499          1,046,123          

216,538             10,489               227,027             181,151             408,178             435,323             353,605             

2,141,066          480,629             2,621,695          426,042             3,047,737          2,895,800          2,874,539          

3,219,034          670,225             3,889,259          686,282             4,575,541          4,556,622          4,274,267          

856,166             186,482             1,042,648          586,335             1,628,983          1,793,611          1,773,507          

9,375,704          2,090,638          11,466,342        3,805,031          15,271,373        14,232,072        14,557,101        

925,445             207,379             1,132,824          424,910             1,557,734          1,244,044          1,553,623          

-                         -                         -                         4,500,010          4,500,010          4,983,967          3,781,629          

11,157,315        2,484,499          13,641,814        9,316,286          22,958,100        22,253,694        21,665,860        

27,204               6,754                 33,958               -                         33,958               31,845               24,757               

-                         -                         -                         984,390             984,390             982,683             906,389             

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

27,204               6,754                 33,958               984,390             1,018,348          1,014,528          931,146             

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

135,703,774      30,004,741        165,708,515      19,183,824        184,892,339      182,781,989      178,000,312      
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Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2017 2017 2016

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 19)

$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 9,895,512         10,900,110       9,885,094         

Other Revenue 6,201,000         6,405,054         6,570,699         

Investment Income 75,000              89,214              42,014              

Total Revenue 16,171,512       17,394,378       16,497,807       

Expenses

Instruction 15,292,260       16,343,054       15,159,636       

Operations and Maintenance 879,252            819,339            944,891            

Total Expense 16,171,512       17,162,393       16,104,527       

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        231,985            393,280            

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (231,985)          (393,280)          

Total Net Transfers -                        (231,985)          (393,280)          

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                       -                        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year -                       -                        

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations

Version: 8710-7964-5981
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning Scholarships Special School Ready,

Facility Improvement and Education Generated Strong Set,

Grant Fund Bursaries Technology Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 17,476                578,700              2,545,952           46,227                15,489                318,714                

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 879,252              3,310,099           223,011              193,472              66,150                405,335            3,840,161             

Other 2,290                  6,462,756           

Investment Income 1,732                  46,564                20,960                

880,984              3,310,099           48,854                223,011              6,483,716           193,472              66,150                405,335            3,840,161             

Less: Allocated to Revenue 833,385              3,310,099           63,571                192,039              5,994,954           205,640              57,676                405,335            3,828,925             
Deferred Revenue, end of year 65,075                -                         563,983              30,972                3,034,714           34,059                23,963                -                       329,950                

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 831,653              3,310,099           192,039              205,640              57,676                405,335            3,828,925             

Other Revenue 2,290                  5,973,994           

Investment Income 1,732                  61,281                20,960                

833,385              3,310,099           63,571                192,039              5,994,954           205,640              57,676                405,335            3,828,925             

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 2,066,336           1,608                263,102                

Principals and Vice Principals 4,555                  46,689              59,805                  

Educational Assistants 536,983              145,602              8,786                  131,720              669,078                

Support Staff 81,045                  

Other Professionals 38,976                  

Substitutes 99,819                61,265                4,000                  28,710                43,558              38,523                  

-                         2,703,138           -                         150,157              70,051                135,720              28,710                91,855              1,150,529             

Employee Benefits 606,961              30,946                11,837                33,266                4,533                  17,023              274,234                

Services and Supplies 819,339              63,571                10,936                5,751,119           36,654                24,433                240,465            2,404,162             

819,339              3,310,099           63,571                192,039              5,833,007           205,640              57,676                349,343            3,828,925             

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers 14,046                -                         -                         -                         161,947              -                         -                         55,992              -                           

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (14,046)              (161,947)             (55,992)            

(14,046)              -                         -                         -                         (161,947)             -                         -                         (55,992)            -                           

Net Revenue (Expense) -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       -                           

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Other

Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education

Other Revenue

Investment Income

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers

Principals and Vice Principals

Educational Assistants

Support Staff

Other Professionals

Substitutes

Employee Benefits

Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Coding and Provincial Attendance

Curriculum Priority Ledger Inclusion Charitable Estate Support and

Implementation Measures School Outreach Trust Trust Wellness TOTAL

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

900                    44,248                59,400                3,627,106           

135,268              1,671,867           223,529              454,658              11,402,802         

428,570              6,893,616           

10,577                79,833                

135,268              1,671,867           223,529              454,658              428,570              10,577                -                         18,376,251         

13,279                1,317,877           223,529              454,658              428,770              5,241                  59,400                17,394,378         
121,989              353,990              -                         -                         700                    49,584                -                         4,608,979           

13,279                1,317,877           223,529              454,658              59,400                10,900,110         

428,770              6,405,054           

5,241                  89,214                

13,279                1,317,877           223,529              454,658              428,770              5,241                  59,400                17,394,378         

1,021,858           109,721              125,029              3,587,654           

4,565                  9,285                  124,899              

43,846                86,835                1,622,850           

22,698                103,743              

49,707                88,683                

10,071                45,610                8,308                  1,150                  739                    341,753              

10,071                1,067,468           166,440              244,997              -                         739                    49,707                5,869,582           

1,591                  250,409              39,207                55,422                117                    9,693                  1,335,239           

1,617                  17,882                154,239              428,770              4,385                  9,957,572           

13,279                1,317,877           223,529              454,658              428,770              5,241                  59,400                17,162,393         

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         231,985              

(231,985)             

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         (231,985)             

-                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2017 2016

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual

(Note 19) Capital Assets Capital Balance

$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 1,200,000     1,597,186                 1,597,186     1,543,616        

Other -                                       -

Municipal Grants Spent on Sites -                                       -

Federal Grants -                                       -

Other Revenue -                                       -

Rentals and Leases 4,028            4,028            4,028            5,138               

Investment Income 70,000          35,469          35,469          46,099             

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 275,000                    275,000        518,833           

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6,721,934     6,687,944                 6,687,944     6,543,808        

Total Revenue 7,995,962     8,560,130                 39,497          8,599,627     8,657,494        

Expenses

Operations and Maintenance 1,200,000     1,597,186                 1,597,186     1,543,616        

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 9,083,417     9,658,430                 9,658,430     9,006,685        

Write-off/down of Buildings and Sites -                   37,002             

Debt Services

Capital Lease Interest 3,762            3,762            6,737               

Total Expense 10,283,417   11,255,616               3,762            11,259,378   10,594,040      

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (2,287,455)   (2,695,486)                35,735          (2,659,751)   (1,936,546)       

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 800,000        5,726,262                 5,726,262     1,572,029        

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress -                                       -

Local Capital 492,290        492,290        117,367           

Total Net Transfers 800,000        5,726,262                 492,290        6,218,552     1,689,396        

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

District Portion of Proceeds on Disposal (275,000)                   275,000        -                   

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 371,824                    (371,824)      -                   

Principal Payment

Capital Lease 276,746                    (276,746)      -                   

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 373,570                    (373,570)      -                   

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,487,455)   3,404,346                 154,455        3,558,801     (247,150)          

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 40,327,088               5,839,053     46,166,141   46,413,291      

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 43,731,434               5,993,508     49,724,942   46,166,141      

2017 Actual

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Schedule of Capital Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost, beginning of year 10,833,717        336,251,946      6,489,956          704,128             290,883             3,909,390          358,480,020      

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Purchases from:

Operating Fund 627,786             47,416               47,244               4,771,831          5,494,277          

Special Purpose Funds 14,046               141,102             76,837               231,985             

Local Capital 371,824             371,824             

Transferred from Work in Progress 9,171,313          177,847             31,347               9,380,507          

-                         9,557,183          946,735             47,416               47,244               4,880,015          15,478,593        

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 705,673             127,551             17,414               623,650             1,474,288          

-                         -                         705,673             127,551             17,414               623,650             1,474,288          

Cost, end of year 10,833,717        345,809,129      6,731,018          623,993             320,713             8,165,755          372,484,325      

Work in Progress, end of year 1,449,881          524                    424                    1,450,829          

Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 10,833,717        347,259,010      6,731,542          623,993             320,713             8,166,179          373,935,154      

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 127,380,470      2,809,642          343,474             49,983               1,570,230          132,153,799      

Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 7,556,535          696,332             72,783               62,901               1,269,879          9,658,430          

Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 705,673             127,551             17,414               623,650             1,474,288          

-                         705,673             127,551             17,414               623,650             1,474,288          

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 134,937,005      2,800,301          288,706             95,470               2,216,459          140,337,941      

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 10,833,717        212,322,005      3,931,241          335,287             225,243             5,949,720          233,597,213      

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Tangible Capital Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Schedule 4B (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer

Buildings Equipment Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $

Work in Progress, beginning of year 5,465,382        -                       -                       -                       5,465,382        

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 2,899,279        178,371           31,771             3,109,421        

Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 2,256,533        2,256,533        

5,155,812        178,371           -                       31,771             5,365,954        

Decrease:

Transferred to Tangible Capital Assets 9,171,313        177,847           31,347             9,380,507        

9,171,313        177,847           -                       31,347             9,380,507        

Net Changes for the Year (4,015,501)      524                  -                       424                  (4,014,553)       

Work in Progress, end of year 1,449,881        524                  -                      424                  1,450,829        

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total

Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $

Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 163,329,752     15,625,912       2,252,569         181,208,233     

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Transferred from Work in Progress 8,363,107         727,400            290,000            9,380,507         

8,363,107         727,400            290,000            9,380,507         

Decrease:

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6,046,150         561,106            80,688              6,687,944         

6,046,150         561,106            80,688              6,687,944         

Net Changes for the Year 2,316,957         166,294            209,312            2,692,563         

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 165,646,709     15,792,206       2,461,881         183,900,796     

Work in Progress, beginning of year 5,165,381         -                        300,000            5,465,381         

Changes for the Year

Increase

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Work in Progress 3,109,421         1,966,533         290,000            5,365,954         

3,109,421         1,966,533         290,000            5,365,954         

Decrease

Transferred to Deferred Capital Revenue 8,363,107         727,400            290,000            9,380,507         

8,363,107         727,400            290,000            9,380,507         

Net Changes for the Year (5,253,686)       1,239,133         -                        (4,014,553)       

Work in Progress, end of year (88,305)            1,239,133         300,000            1,450,828         

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 165,558,404     17,031,339       2,761,881         185,351,624     

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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 September 06, 2017  18:02 Page 3780



Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MEd Other

Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year -                        5,005,156         -                        -                        157,453            5,162,609         

Changes for the Year

Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 5,721,373         5,721,373         

Provincial Grants - Other 405,409            405,409            

Other 70,901              273,871            344,772            

Investment Income 4,501                4,501                

MEd Restricted Portion of Proceeds on Disposal 825,000            825,000            

5,721,373         900,402            405,409            -                        273,871            7,301,055         

Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Work in Progress 3,109,421         1,966,533         290,000            5,365,954         

Bylaw Expenditures 1,597,187         1,597,187         

4,706,608         1,966,533         -                        -                        290,000            6,963,141         

Net Changes for the Year 1,014,765         (1,066,131)       405,409            -                        (16,129)            337,914            

Balance, end of year 1,014,765         3,939,025         405,409            -                       141,324            5,500,523         

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue

Year Ended June 30, 2017
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